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30 September 2011

Hon. Michael O’Brien MP
Minister for Agriculture and Fisheries
Minister for Forests
Minister for Energy

Hon. Tom Koutsantonis MP
Minister for Mineral Resources Development

Hon. Paul Caica MP
Minister for Environment and Conservation

Hon. Paul Rau MP
Minister for Food

Hon. Kevin Foley MP
Minister assisting the Premier with the Olympic Dam Taskforce

Dear Ministers,

I am pleased to present the PIRSA annual report for the year ended 30 June 2011. The report  
has been prepared under section 66 of the Public Sector Act 2009, in accordance with the Act’s 
accompanying regulations as well as the financial reporting requirements of the Public Finance and 
Audit Act 1987.

Yours sincerely

Geoff Knight
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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The Department of Primary Industries and Resources SA (PIRSA) is a diverse, complex agency supporting 
a range of resource sectors, from mining and agriculture, food and wine, forestry and fisheries. These  
sectors encompass much of the economic base of South Australia and its communities.

No industry sectors were immune from significant world impacts including the aftermath of the global  
financial crisis, changing world trade, the impacts of drought and climate change imperatives, and debates 
on competing land uses. Against this backdrop, PIRSA undertook an extensive examination of our  
organisation, which I will detail later in this overview.

Mining continued to play an essential role in managing South Australia’s mineral resources. SA’s mining 
boom continued to gain momentum with four new mines commencing production/construction during 
2010-11, taking the number of major metal or mineral mines to 16.

Mining exploration expenditure in SA for the year to March 2011 totalled $217.6 million – 8.2% of total 
Australian mineral exploration expenditure, exceeding the SA Strategic Plan Target of maintaining  
exploration expenditure above $100 million a year.

The Olympic Dam Task Force, which is facilitating BHP Billiton’s proposed expansion of the Olympic Dam 
mine and leading negotiations on a new indenture, was incorporated into PIRSA during the year.

SA had a record grain crop harvest valued at more than $3 billion, resulting in one of its highest level of 
exports and shipping from SA ports.

In spring 2010, the State faced its biggest locust plague, for 40 years, with the potential to cause significant 
damage to primary production if left unchecked.

The newly formed division, Biosecurity SA mounted the largest operation of its kind on two fronts – the 
Far North and Riverland/Murray Mallee - to tackle the plague. The operation resulted in more than  
468 000 hectares aerial sprayed, as well as on-ground action by farmers and local authorities. Two control 
centres directed the response, harnessing PIRSA resources and local knowledge. Two-way communication 
through the leadership of two community reference groups and community meetings in the regions was 
pivotal in ensuring about 80% of locusts were eradicated and swarms kept from the key cropping areas of 
the Mid-North and from Adelaide.

Analyses by the Australian Bureau of Agricultural and Resource Economics on the benefit cost analysis 
for the control operations undertaken by the Australian Plague Locust Commission and each of the State 
jurisdictions, was exceptional for SA. For an investment of $10.4 million, a benefit of $465 million was 
reported; the economic benefit of $44.60 for every government dollar spent. Biosecurity SA will continue 
to monitor the locust situation in 2011.

The effectiveness of the community awareness campaign mounted by PIRSA was acknowledged by the 
campaign winning the Best Public Relations Campaign (government or private) category in the prestigious 
2011 SA media Awards.

Also culminating during the year, was PIRSA’s leadership of the State’s response to prolonged drought 
conditions over five years. This acknowledged our sustained commitment and drive, with the program in 
2010-11 focussed on transition and recovery from the drought, following improved seasonal conditions.

Chief Executive’s Overview
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The Drought Response Team provided a dedicated, collaborative effort, not only across government, but 
also connected to the community through regional task forces. It delivered a seamless, coordinated and 
phased approach, with a focus on business, family and community support. Future drought responses will 
be guided by the outcomes of the new national approach, being piloted in Western Australia. The WA 
model has taken up some of the response models used in SA. 

The team’s significant contribution to the State was acknowledged by the team taking out the Building 
Communities category in the Premier’s Awards which highlight excellence in the public sector.

PIRSA also made some significant scientific contributions to the State, with SARDI scientists developing a 
suite of DNA-based diagnostic tests to help the Australian potato processing industry overcome losses of 
more than $80 million due to quality rejections and reduced yields.

Our Investment and Strategic Projects Division played a key role in case managing major projects  
proposed for the State. One such project is the proposed $1billion Arafura Resources development of a 
Rare Earths processing facility near Whyalla. The case management work in this instance provides a single 
point of contract for Arafura Resources for their dealings with the range of government agencies helping 
to resolve issues at the development stage of this major project. 

 Along with other government agencies a challenge for PIRSA, arising from the Sustainable Budget  
Commission and State Budget imperatives is to continue to deliver leading support to industry in the 
aftermath of the global financial crisis.

To ensure that PIRSA continues to drive economic growth in a sustainable and strategic way, a major  
internal review of PIRSA was undertaken, building on work already undertaken during the past few years.

The review focussed on five areas:

1. Core business: What key outputs should PIRSA deliver in order to maximise benefits for SA?

2. Resource allocation: How should the agency’s resources be allocated?

3. Capabilities: What capabilities does PIRSA have and what capabilities are required to deliver on its   
 priorities?

4. Culture: What behaviours characterise the culture PIRSA needs for success? How can these be  
 fostered?

5. Structure: What organisational structure and accountabilities are needed to align effort and ensure 
 quality decision making?

Significant change will of necessity take time to plan and bed down. Arising from the review, PIRSA in 
2010-11 realigned its divisions into four main groupings to adopt an enhanced partnering and collaborative 
approach to service delivery expectations within constrained resources. These new groupings are outlined 
in this report.

To achieve greater cohesion, several amalgamations of business units resulted from PIRSA’s reviews, which 
included a reduction in the number of Executives Senior. 

Chief Executive’s Overview
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The units of Fisheries and Aquaculture merged in October 2010. This amalgamation will improve  
efficiencies across the division and enhance the development of the wild and farmed seafood sector as a 
whole.

The Forestry Division joined Agriculture, Food and Wine to create a greater focus on land use,  
productivity and industry development.

A new grouping of Strategy, Policy and People was created bringing together the Chief Executive’s Office; 
Policy and Planning; Investment and Strategic Projects; Industry, Regional and Community Engagement; 
People, Learning and Culture (formerly Human Resources) and Strategic Communications.

This ensures PIRSA can leverage social science and economic analysis to shape policy development,  
including tackling cross-cutting policy issues such as climate change, water and food security and other 
emerging issues. It also augments PIRSA’s sharp focus on enhancing industry and regional development and 
community engagement.

As PIRSA looks further to the future, the South Australian Research and Development Institute (SARDI) 
entered into talks with the University of Adelaide to investigate a merger proposal to position SA as a 
world class centre for primary industries education, research and development.

A joint SARDI-Adelaide University working party has concluded that incorporation of SARDI as a  
controlled entity (retaining its name and research autonomy) within the University has merit. It would 
enhance collective research, development, technology transfer and educational capability. It has the  
potential to create a world class facility to support the State’s agriculture, marine science and fisheries, 
natural resource management and environmental science industries.

Both parties will continue in the early part of 2011-12 to undertake detailed consideration and due  
diligence assessment of the proposal to ensure the concept is feasible and risks are addressed.

PIRSA’s commercial arm, Rural Solutions SA, was examined to take a robust look at its future viability as a 
commercial government entity. 

The review recognised that Rural Solutions SA has a high profile market position with a passionate  
workforce and the brand is seen as reliable and “can do”. These strengths will be the platform to secure 
Rural Solutions SA as a strong, viable public sector business. 

Biosecurity SA was established on 1 July 2010 as a division through the amalgamation of the biosecurity 
functions of PIRSA and the former Department of Water, Land and Biodiversity Conservation. This  
integration, bringing together animal health, plant health, food safety, emergency management, rural  
chemical, marine pests, NRM biosecurity, weeds, and vertebrate animal pests, enhances the State’s ability 
to strategically and effectively respond to animal, plant and marine pests and diseases. It also boosts the 
Government of South Australia’s policy and operational expertise and capabilities in this area.

These changes will serve PIRSA well into the future. I look forward to leading PIRSA’s continued journey 
in delivering long-term economic, social and environmental prosperity to SA from all our resource sectors.

Geoff Knight 
Chief Executive

Chief Executive’s Overview
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Organisation Chart
At 30 June 2010
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OUR VISION: South Australia’s natural resources and primary industry assets are developed sustainably to 
support prosperous industries and communities. 

OUR GOALS: Reaching sustainable development can be achieved by enhancing SA’s economic growth through 
international competitiveness that supports resilient communities whilst maintaining sustainable ecosystems. 

OUR MISSION: Primary Industries and Resources South Australia (PIRSA) is a key economic development 
agency of the Government of SA.

PIRSA plays an important role in contributing to the sustainable development of the State’s natural, industrial and  
community assets. PIRSA works with industry to manage resources sustainably and enhance value chains.
SA’s Strategic Plan targets form the basis of PIRSA’s role in fostering environmentally sustainable and  
internationally competitive industries. 

These targets include increasing exports to $25 billion by 2014; maintaining mineral production levels above the SA 
Strategic Plan Mineral Exploration target of $3 billion and boosting annual mineral production and processing to  
$4 billion by 2014.

PIRSA is an organisation of 1 356 staff members, whose business activities are provided across the State in 11 CBD and 
Metropolitan offices and 30 Regional (including home offices) in the program areas: 

• Agricultural and horticultural industry policy development.

• Fisheries and aquaculture management and industry development.

• Minerals and petroleum exploration and development.

• Delivering policies and programs managing natural resources for sustainable industry growth.

• Delivering rural and remote community support services.

• Facilitating the application of new technologies, services, products and knowledge through its strong  
 partnerships with industry sectors, market intelligence, science and regional communities.

• Providing research and development capability, delivering innovation to the food, fibre and bioscience  
 industries and ecosystem sector.

OUR VALUES: In undertaking our role we value:

Commitment – We are committed to responsible and sustainable industry and community development.

Collaboration – We collaborate through alliances and partnerships that encourage shared success.

Customer orientation – Our customer needs are met with a professional, flexible, responsive and timely approach.

Achievement – Our environment and culture is results-focused, fosters trust and mutual respect and 
provides a safe working environment.

Innovation – We build our capabilities, new approaches, innovation and ideas, and continually strive for knowledge, 
understanding and smart use of new technologies.

People – We value the capabilities, experience and diversity that each of us brings to the organisation.

Empowerment and accountability – Our individuals and work teams are empowered and accountable, 
provide leadership and accept calculated risk.

Integrity – We are committed to honesty, integrity and the highest standards.

PIRSA’s role
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Record grain crop harvested across the State valued at 
more than $3 billion resulting in a record level of 
exports and shipping from South Australian ports.

Successful control of locust numbers in an unprecedented 
outbreak of locust populations across south eastern  
Australia, delivering an economic benefit of $465 
million to the State.

Won best Public Relation campaign in the prestigious  
2011 Media Awards, for the 2010 spring locust media and  
community campaign. 

Gross food revenue contributed $12.4 billion to the 
State, after food production value rose to a record  
$3.5 billion.

Completed the leadership role of the State Drought  
Response Program; overseeing the management and  
delivery of $155 million, supporting industries and 
communities through five years of extended drought.

South Australia became the largest processor of pork, 
processing 25% more than any other state in Australia.

Exports of red meat from SA increased by 26% to $699 
million.

On average 2.4 million cubic metres of plantation 
softwood logs are harvested in SA. This was about 17.2% 
of Australia’s total in 2010. 

Eradicated four Mediterranean fruit fly outbreaks to  
remain the only mainland State which is fruit fly free,  
saving the $480 million Riverland horticulture industry.

Completed 1 750 audits of processor and producer food 
safety programs.

A purpose designed and built operation facility for  
fisheries compliance worth $2.1 million was completed.

Construction of the Limestone Coast Fisheries patrol 
vessel, FPV Canunda, worth $275 000 was completed, 
allowing Fisheries Officers to undertake more effective sea 
patrols in the region.

Rural Solutions SA helped generate revenue: $11 
million in environmental solutions; $7 million in 
industry services and $3 million in community programs. 

Rural Solution SA generated revenue of more than $3 
million dollars on aid projects in the Middle East, India 
and  Africa. 

Planted 500 000 seedlings for the Coorong and Lower 
Lakes Bioremediation project for the Department of  
Environment and Natural Resources.

SARDI scientists developed a suite of DNA-based  
diagnostic tests to help the Australian potato processing 
industry overcome losses of more than $80 million due 
to quality rejections and reduced yields.

Entomologists at SARDI released a parasitoid wasp, a form 
of biological control to attack pine aphids, a pest that costs 
Australia’s forestry industry $21 million in lost wood 
production per year.

Case managed 24 major projects in SA worth in excess of 
$4.1 billion, such as the Arafura Resources Rare Earths 
Processing Facility in Whyalla.

Granted the first SA Gas Storage Licence pursuant to 
amendments made in 2009 to the Petroleum and 
Geothermal Energy Act 2000.

Launched SARIG 2020 online geoserver, the first of its 
kind in the world enabling users to search view and  
download information relating to exploration in SA.

Aggregate investment in SA geothermal energy projects in 
the period 2002 through 2010 is an estimated $582.6 
million, 87% of the national tally.

At a Glance - Highlights for 2010-11
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Performance Summary 

Group Executive Directorate
Primary Industries and Biosecurity

The Group Executive Directorate, Primary Industries and Biosecurity is committed to the economic development of 
South Australia and the continued research and development towards sustainable use of the State’s food, fibre and 
aquatic industries.

The group comprises four divisions: 

• Agriculture, Food, Wine and Forestry

• Biosecurity SA

• Fisheries and Aquaculture 

• South Australian Research and Development Institute (SARDI)

The new group directorate, set up in April 2011, aims to deliver business efficiencies and drive industry development 
by strengthening industry linkages. It also aims to streamline the handling of cross-cutting issues through greater  
collaboration with the Strategy, Policy and People directorate.

During the developmental stage of the group directorate, some significant changes were made within the divisions, 
with the transfer of Sustainable Systems to the Strategy, Policy and People Group Directorate. This included, natural 
resource management, water policy, drought and community engagement. 

The Forestry Division combined with Agriculture, Food and Wine, creating a strategic focus on the land and industry 
development. This change was designed to enhance these industries, which generate over $15 billion in annual  
revenue.

The business units of PIRSA’s Fisheries and Aquaculture Divisions merged in October 2010 to form the PIRSA  
Fisheries and Aquaculture Division. The amalgamation was undertaken to improve efficiencies across the divisions and 
enhance the development of the seafood sector as a whole.
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Performance Summary: Agriculture, Food, Wine and Forestry

SA Strategic Plan Targets

Objective 1 - Growing Prosperity

ECONOMIC GROWTH (T1.1)

COMPETITIVE BUSINESS CLIMATE (T1.2)

BUSINESS INVESTMENT (T1.5)

PERFORMANCE IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR (T1.7, T1.8, T1.9)

JOBS (T1.10)

TOTAL EXPORTS (T1.14)

Objective 2 - Improving Wellbeing

HEALTHY SOUTH AUSTRALIANS (T2.4)

Objective 3 - Attaining Sustainability

ECOLOGICAL FOOTPRINT (T3.7)

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS REDUCTION (T3.5)

RENEWABLE ENERGY (T3.12)

Objective 4 - Fostering Creativity

BUSINESS INNOVATION (T4.7)

Objective 5 - Building Communities

REGIONAL POPULATION LEVELS (T5.9)

Objective 6 - Expanding Opportunity

HIGHER EDUCATION (T6.20)

VET PARTICIPATION (T6.21)
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Performance Summary: Agriculture, Food, Wine and Forestry

Agriculture, Food and Wine

The Agriculture, Food and Wine Division of PIRSA aims to increase the economic contribution of the agriculture, food 
and wine industries through the development and execution of a market driven approach to industry development.  
The division develops and implements policies, legislation, regulatory frameworks and programs to sustain and enable 
the creation of value through the chain. Strategies and projects are developed and executed collaboratively with  
industry and other government agencies to ensure the benefits are broadly implemented across industry. 

Key objectives are to:

• Increase the number and value of value-added products and processes in the food and fibre industries.

• Facilitate the development of internationally competitive export services.

• Maximise investment in education, training and other innovative capacity-building initiatives.

Forestry

PIRSA Forestry supports the sustainable development of an internationally competitive forest industry, regional  
development and the provision of services from State Government forest reserves.

Key objectives are to provide:

• Policy advice to the Minister and State Government in relation to forestry, forest industries and associated  
 environmental matters.

• Programs to support forest industry development; farm forestry and pest, disease and fire protection for the 
 State’s forestry industries.

• Programs that deliver community benefits from forestry activities, including public activities and biodiversity  
 management in the State’s forest reserves.

Achievements for 2010-11

Agriculture, Food and Wine

z	 Entered into a four-year $1 million funding agreement with the South Australian Wine Industry Association
 (SAWIA) to implement a China wine market development program.

z	 Facilitated the amalgamation of Food Adelaide and Flavour SA, to establish a single peak industry body Food SA. 
 A partnership with the new body is supported by the commitment of $2.2 million over four-years to sustain the 
 continued growth of a strong, innovative and resilient food sector in SA.

z	 Partnered with industry and other states to lead the National Lamb Value Chain project to determine the nature
 of benefits of more integrated agricultural chains to improve productivity.

z	 Implemented strategies identified in the Agrifood and Wine Industry Workforce Action Plan including the 
 establishment of an interim agrifood and wine alliance to support cross-government and industry activities.
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Performance Summary: Agriculture, Food, Wine and Forestry

Agriculture, Food and Wine

z	 Led the successful Cheese Maker in Residence program that has significantly increased both the current skills base
 and future training opportunities to boost the development of the artisan cheese industry in SA.

z	 Provided Exceptional Circumstances Interest Rate Subsidy support to farm and farm dependent small businesses
 across the State until improved seasonal conditions led to a sequential expiration of declarations.

z	 Established a recycled water use program and framework with the McLaren Vale Water Plan Committee resulting
 in an additional 50 ML of recycled water contracted. Designed to trigger an uptake of up to 285 ML over the next 
 five-years.

z	 Contributed to whole of government advice on land use planning, water allocations plans and Natural Resource
 Management plans.

z	 Managed the 13th annual Premier’s Food Industry Awards to recognise outstanding achievement and excellence in
 the SA food industry.

Forestry

z	 Facilitated the finalisation of the SA Forest Industry Strategy through industry and public consultation together
 with the Forest Industry Development Board.

z	 Supported the 2010 Australian Forest Growers Conference in regional SA to promote sustainable forestry 
 development.

z	 Developed and implemented a Memorandum of Administrative Arrangement with ForestrySA to manage their
 community service obligations involving Native Forest Management, Community Use of Forest Reserves, Forestry 
 Industry Development, and Community Fire Protection.

z	 Provided policy information to support the activities of the SA Forestry Corporation. 

z	 Developed a collaborative project to update information on investment opportunities for forest and forest 
 products in the Green Triangle Region.

z	 Provided input into national climate change policy and promoted SA’s involvement.

z	 Supported The Murray and Mallee Carbon Forum organised by the Murray Mallee Agroforestry Working Group 
 of which PIRSA Forestry is a member. The forum was opened by PIRSA’s Chief Executive and included  
 presentations on the current state of carbon markets, legal matters and management issues.

z	 Supported an assessment of the economic impact of the timber industry in the Mount Lofty Ranges and 
 Mid North Regions of SA. 

z	 Assisted in the development of the Australian Forest Education Alliance Forest Learning website.

z	 Revised conditions under the Penola Pulp Mill Authorisation Act 2007 have been agreed in lieu of amendments.

z	 Promoted sustainable forestry development, through the support of the 2010 Australian Forest Growers 
 conference in regional SA.
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Performance Summary: Agriculture, Food, Wine and Forestry

Targets for 2011-12

Agriculture, Food and Wine

z	 Lead the SA Government’s discussions on food security with the aim of establishing an agreed position and 
 contribute to national initiatives, including the development of the National Food Plan.

z	 Partner with the SA food industry sector groups through reviewing and implementing priority opportunities 
 arising from the SA Seafood and Grains Market Overview Reports.

z	 Prepare SA Meat Industry and SA Forestry Overview Reports.

z	 Promote the Lamb Value Chain findings to influence Commonwealth and State agriculture policy and implement
 improvement projects identified for the South Australian case study of the National Lamb Value Chain project. 

z	 Promote the Lamb Value Chain findings to industry and government partners. 

z	 Review and report on the implementation status of the recommendations contained in Adelaide Thinker in 
 Residence Professor Andrew Fearne’s Sustainable Food and Wine Value Chains report.

z	 Facilitate lodgement of a development application for a multi-species abattoir at Port Pirie and the associated
 development assessment process.

z	 Facilitate a number of improvement projects arising from the lamb, citrus and potato value chain projects.

z	 Monitor and report on the 2012 crop and pasture performance.

z	 Case manage and facilitate priority investments in the grains, livestock, seafood and horticulture sectors.

z	 Review the functions of the Wheat Marketing Act 1989.

z	 Continue to implement and monitor actions associated with the Genetically Modified Crops Management Act 2004.

z	 Consider and submit to Cabinet applications for renewal of seven wine industry funds established under the 
 Primary Industry Funding Schemes Act 1998 which return approximately $2.75 million to industry each year.

z	 Project manage the second year of the South Australian Wine Industry Association (SAWIA) market development
 funding agreement which provides $1 million of funding to SAWIA over four years to conduct market 
 development activities for the benefit of the SA wine industry.

z	 Conduct a wine industry forum to provide an opportunity for members of the State’s grape and wine industries 
 to come together to address key issues facing the SA wine industry.

z	 Continue to support the operations of the SA Wine Industry Council to identify industry issues and priorities 
 in the partnership plan.

Forestry

z	 Review and document sustainable soil management principles for harvesting forest residue.

z	 Initiate implementation of the South Australian Forestry Industry Strategy through engagement with forestry
 industry stakeholders.

z	 Contribute to the international AUSTimber 2012 Conference in regional SA.
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SA Strategic Plan Targets

Objective 1 - Growing Prosperity

ECONOMIC GROWTH (T1.1)

PERFORMANCE IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR - CUSTOMER AND CLIENT SATISFACTION  
WITH GOVERNMENT SERVICES (T1.7)

TOTAL EXPORTS (T1.14)

ABORIGINAL UNEMPLOYMENT (T1.26)

Objective 2 - Improving Wellbeing

GREATER SAFETY AT WORK (T2.11)

Objective 3 - Attaining Sustainability

LOSE NO SPECIES (T3.1)

Performance Summary: Biosecurity SA

Biosecurity SA develops and implements policies, legislation, regulatory frameworks, surveillance, preparedness and  
response programs. These protect the economy, environment, communities and human health from the negative  
impacts associated with the entry, establishment or spread of pests, diseases and contaminants. 

Biosecurity is a shared responsibility across all levels of government, industry and the community, and Biosecurity 
SA works with risk creators and industry beneficiaries to contribute to an effective biosecurity system. This work 
includes publicising that early detection and intervention for a new incursion leads to better and more cost effective 
outcomes.

Benefactors of this are the areas of animal health, aquatic animal health, marine pests, vertebrate pests, weeds, plant 
health and food borne pathogens, from primary industries and chemical residues. 

Key objectives for Biosecurity SA are:

• Partnering with government organisations, industries and communities to build a shared vision and shared  
 responsibility for biosecurity.

• Building capabilities and capacity across government and industries.

• Preventing and being prepared to respond to and/or manage animal and plant pest and diseases, contaminant  
 and food safety risks and emergencies.

• Building and/or maintaining surveillance programs for high priority threats.

• Positively influencing State and National policies, commitments and agendas.

• Developing our people, support services and business practices.
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Performance Summary: Biosecurity SA

Achievements for 2010-11

Biosecurity SA
z	 Established Biosecurity SA as a division through the amalgamation of PIRSA business units with units from the
 former Department of Water, Land and Biodiversity Conservation.

z	 In spring 2010, controlled successfully the biggest locust plague across South Australia in 40 years. Appearing in
 the State’s Far North and Riverland/Murray Mallee, the pest had the potential to cause up to $3 billion of damage 
 to primary production if left unchecked. Working with other PIRSA divisions, Biosecurity SA managed to protect a 
 record grain harvest and deliver a benefit to SA of $465 million, according to the Australian Bureau of Agricultural 
 and Resource Economic Sciences.

z	 Eradicated four Mediterranean fruit fly outbreaks to remain the only mainland State which is fruit fly free. This
 conserved the $480 million Riverland horticulture industry and saved $4.2 million in treatment costs.

z	 Established and assisted the SA Mouse Working Party to review and make recommendations on improvements to
 mouse plague management.

z	 Implemented mandatory Property Identification Codes for all livestock properties to enhance animal health 
 disease surveillance and response.

z	 Gained provisional freedom from Enzootic Bovine Leucosis for the SA Dairy Industry and disease free status for
 Onion Smut.

z	 Removed feral pacific oysters from Denial Bay and Franklin Harbour to reduce environmental and amenity impacts.

z	 Accredited 930 meat processors, 130 shellfish producers and five sprouters, and approved 25 citrus packer food
 safety programs while also auditing 1 750 food producer and processor businesses. 

z	 Tested more than 1 000 rabbit samples to understand the epidemiology and genetic variation of rabbit 
 haemorrhagic disease (RHD), with a view to future release of new RHD strains.

z	 Fostered early detection of new pests through new extension material on 25 Alert Weeds, three aquatic pest
 forums and site surveillance of cane toads in South Western Queensland.

z	 Partnered with Natural Resource Management (NRM) Boards, to contain the spread of 11 significant weed threats
 to SA. This reduced control costs and losses in production and led to the largest discovery and market assurance 
 survey for branched broomrape on record. As a result 358 738 ha were inspected and provided for unfettered 
 marketing of produce from the Murray Mallee and other regions in SA.

Targets for 2011-12
z	 Investigate cost sharing options for the plant health program.

z	 Complete implementation of cost recovery for the animal health program.

z	 Consolidate training of staff across PIRSA for the Biosecurity First Response Team.

z	 Conduct a gap analysis on Biosecurity SA surveillance programs for high priority threats.

z	 Implement new national Bovine Johne’s disease control arrangements.

z	 Implement national food safety schemes for poultry and eggs.

z	 Implement the National Feral Camel Action Plan within SA.

z	 Review plant declarations under the Natural Resources Management Act 2004.

z	 Establish national management arrangements for European House Borer and branched broomrape.
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SA Strategic Plan Targets

Objective 1 - Growing Prosperity

ECONOMIC GROWTH (T1.1)

BUSINESS INVESTMENTS (T1.5)

PERFORMANCE IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR – CUSTOMER AND CLIENT SATISFACTION WITH GOVERNMENT 
SERVICES (T1.7)

JOBS (T1.10)

EXPORTS (T1.14)

Objective 2 - Improving Wellbeing

SPORTS AND RECREATION (T2.3)

Objective 3 - Attaining Sustainability

ECOLOGICAL FOOTPRINT (T3.7)

Objective 4 - Fostering Creativity

BUSINESS EXPENDITURE (T4.11)

Objective 5 - Building Communities

REGIONAL POPULATION LEVEL (T5.9) 

Performance Summary: Fisheries and Aquaculture

The PIRSA business units of Fisheries and Aquaculture merged in October 2010 to form the PIRSA Fisheries and 
Aquaculture Division. The amalgamation was undertaken to improve efficiencies across the divisions and enhance the 
development of the seafood sector as a whole.

The division is responsible for:

• Ensuring the ecological sustainable development and management of the State’s commercial, recreational and  
 Aboriginal traditional fisheries.

• Ensuring the ecologically sustainable growth of the aquaculture industry.

• Coordinating equitable and efficient allocation of the State’s aquatic resources on behalf of the South Australian 
 community.

• Educating fishers and aquaculture farmers across the State about their responsibilities towards sustainability.

• Working closely with industry to determine the compliance risks associated with each fishing and aquaculture  
 sector.

• Developing and reviewing fishery management plans and aquaculture zone policies to make sure each sector  
 is operating under the most efficient framework towards sustainability.
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Performance Summary: Fisheries and Aquaculture

Achievements for 2010-11

Fisheries and Aquaculture
z	 Undertook a recreational fishing engagement project to develop an ongoing strategy to improve relationships and
 communication between PIRSA and the recreational fishing sector. The project will assist to develop and manage 
 the strategic plan for the South Australia recreational fishery.

z	 Opened the Murray Cod catch-and-release recreational fishery for the 2011-12 seasons. The annual seasonal 
 closure from 1 August to 31 December 2011 still applies with closure in the important breeding area Chowilla  
 and gear restrictions introduced.

z	 Developed management plans for the Charter Boat Fishery and commercial Blue Crab Fishery for implementation, 
 pending ministerial approval. Management plans provide harvest strategies for commercial fisheries and allocate the 
 resource between the commercial, recreational and Aboriginal traditional fishing sectors. 

z	 Made significant progress on new harvest strategies for the Southern Zone Rocklobster and Northern Zone
 Rocklobster Fishery. Agreement on the strategies was the result of strong collaboration between PIRSA and the 
 industry.

z	 PIRSA Fisheries and Aquaculture’s flagship patrol vessel, The Southern Ranger, played an instrumental role in 
 February during the search for a missing Abalone diver, presumed taken by two White Sharks, near Coffin Bay on 
 the Eyre Peninsula. 

z	 Introduced a Master Operational Planning (MOP) system to enhance planning and reporting of commercial and
 recreational compliance activity. The MOP system allows for monitoring of emerging trends, meaning that  
 risk-based and intelligence-driven compliance plans can be developed to address these trends, effectively using 
 compliance resources. 

z	 The division’s compliance and investigative role was highlighted in a joint operation with SA Police that resulted
 in the arrest of three men, charged with allegedly trafficking Abalone. Fisheries Officers seized approximately  
 170 kg of Abalone with a street value of between $17 000 and $25 000. PIRSA will allege that the criminal  
 operation was responsible for the illegal sales of Abalone in excess of 500 kg within the last six months.

z	 Coordinated a public and stakeholder consultation process on the draft Aquaculture Amendment Bill, between 
 December 2010 and March 2011 five public meetings were held in Adelaide and regional areas. Changes proposed   
 in the draft Bill include the introduction of provisions for research leases, registration of third-party interests,  
 amalgamation of aquaculture leases, improved emergency arrangements and improved arrangements for  
 allocation of access to State waters.  A draft Bill has been supported by the Aquaculture Advisory Committee 
 (AAC) and is expected to be submitted to cabinet for consideration in the third quarter of 2011.

z	 The AAC endorsed the Aquaculture (Zones – Streaky Bay) Policy 2011, the Aquaculture (Zones – Arno Bay) Policy
 2011 and the Aquaculture (Zones – Lacepede Bay) Policy 2011. The committee recommended the Minister gazette 
 their commencement in accordance with the provisions of the Aquaculture Act 2001.  Ministerial approval will now
 be sought for these policies which are expected to be gazetted and implemented in the third quarter of 2011.

• The AAC endorsed the draft Aquaculture (Zones – Tumby Bay) Policy 2011 and supporting report to be released 
 for public consultation in accordance with the provisions of the Aquaculture Act 2001. Ministerial approval to 
 release the policy and supporting report will now be sought with the two-month public consultation periods 
 expected to occur in the third quarter of 2011.

• Developed an activity-based cost recovery framework to be applied to each aquaculture industry sector,  
 the framework is in line with the PIRSA Cost Recovery Policy. 
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Fisheries and Aquaculture

z	 Completed a new 8.5 metre vessel for the Limestone Coast region, the vessel will allow Fisheries Officers to 
 better undertake their at-sea operations throughout the region. The rigid hull inflatable patrol vessel is the first of 
 its kind in the Fisheries fleet.

z	 Completed construction of a new compliance operations facility at the new Adelaide Marina in Largs North, 
 specifically designed for the specialised needs of the compliance group.

z	 Employed and trained four new Fisheries Officers. One Officer was deployed to Kingston, another to Mount 
 Gambier and two officers to Ceduna.

z	 Centralised all Fisheries and Aquaculture licensing services to Grenfell Street in Adelaide, allowing for a one-stop
 shop for all licensing needs. 

z	 Completed the Cost Recovery Revocation Policy for Aquaculture to allow for the adoption of a consistent 
 approach to cost recovery under the PIRSA-wide Cost Recovery Policy. 

z	 Fourth milestone of the PIRSA Innovative Solutions II – Carrying capacity of Spencer Gulf project was achieved.
 This project aimed to provide information to underpin the future sustainable management of seafood industry 
 activities in the Spencer Gulf region.

z	 First milestone of the PIRSA Innovative Solutions II – Biosecurity risk assessment and development of standardised
 mitigation for tuna and finfish aquaculture was completed.

z	 New offshore farming sites for tuna farming in the Lower Eyre Peninsula region were assessed and approved.

Targets for 2011-12
z	 Coordinate a regulatory rules review in consultation with the industry on behalf of the Fisheries Council of SA.
  The review seeks to rationalise and simplify rules imposed on fishing activities.

z	 Develop a strategic plan for recreational fishers by 31 December 2011 and a recreational fishery management 
 plan by 30 June 2012. Both completed plans will be presented to The Fisheries Council of SA.

z	 Undertake a review of Snapper management arrangements to ensure the long-term sustainability of the fishery.

z	 Continue to support the Fisheries Council in the development of fishery management plans under the Fisheries
 Management Act 2007.

z	 Complete construction of a new Central South vessel to patrol the Adelaide metropolitan region.

z	 Submit a final draft Bill to amend the Aquaculture Act 2001 to parliament.

z	 Review the Aquaculture Regulations 2005.

z	 Complete aquaculture zone policies for Tumby Bay and review Lower Eyre Peninsula aquaculture zone policy.

z	 Complete strategic zoning exercise to forecast trends in aquaculture location, species and technology development
 for the next five years. 

z	 Continue Innovative Solutions projects to inform aquaculture developments and negotiate provisions for scientific
 investigation and research into the development of new aquaculture zones.

Performance Summary: Fisheries and Aquaculture
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Performance Summary: Fisheries and Aquaculture

z	 Continue consultation with the Department of Environment and Natural Resources on the marine parks initiative.

z	 Complete the amalgamation of the Fisheries and Aquaculture Divisions to streamline business practices.

z	 Implement cost recovery measures across the aquaculture sectors in line with PIRSA’s Cost Recovery Policy.

z	 Coordinate and host the National Fisheries Compliance Conference in Adelaide, showcasing compliance at a 
 national level.
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SA Strategic Plan Targets

Objective 1 - Growing Prosperity

ECONOMIC GROWTH (T1.1)

TOTAL EXPORTS (T1.14)

STRATEGIC INFRASTRUCTURE (T1.21)

Objective 2 - Improving Wellbeing

HEALTHY SOUTH AUSTRALIANS (T 2.4)

CHRONIC DISEASES (T 2.6)

Objective 3 - Attaining Sustainability

LOSE NO SPECIES (T3.1)

SOIL PROTECTION (T3.4)

SUSTAINABLE WATER SUPPLY (T3.9)

Objective 4 - Fostering Creativity

COMMERCIALISATION OF RESEARCH (T4.6)

BUSINESS INNOVATION (T4.7)

PUBLIC EXPENDITURE (T4.9)

AUSTRALIAN GOVERNMENT RESOURCES (T4.10)

BUSINESS EXPENDITURE (T4.11)

Performance Summary: SARDI

The South Australian Research and Development Institute (SARDI) delivers robust science solutions underpinning  
internationally competitive, sustainable primary industries. Our scientists create opportunities for market growth 
within food, agriculture, aquatic and bioscience industries, ensuring they remain internationally competitive and  
ecologically sustainable.

SARDI’s scientific outcomes contribute to SA’s Strategic Plan through the State’s Science and Technology Plan (STI10) 
to attract critical investment and research infrastructure, meeting specific industry priorities to enhance economic 
performance and pursue innovation in environmental issues.

Across its science programs, the Institute addresses these priorities or barriers to growth for primary industries:

• Food safety and innovation

• Product integrity

• Food security

• Sustainable natural resource utilisation

• Climate adaptation and primary production

• Enabling technologies

• Biosecurity
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Performance Summary: SARDI

In July 2010 SARDI and the University of Adelaide began discussions to investigate the possibility of a merger, to  
position South Australia as a world class centre for primary industries education, research and development. These 
discussions will continue into the early part of 2011-12 to undertake assessments of the proposal, to ensure the  
concept is feasible and risks are addressed. 

Achievements for 2010-11
z	 SARDI scientists developed a suite of DNA-based diagnostic tests to help the Australian potato processing 
 industry overcome losses of more than $80 million due to quality rejections and reduced yields.

z	 Entomologists at SARDI released a parasitoid wasp, a form of biological control to attack pine aphids, a pest that
 costs Australia’s forestry industry $21 million in lost wood production per year.

z	 Collected the first major oceanographic data streams from the $9.4 million Southern Australian Integrated Marine 
 Observing System (SAIMOS). This information will help improve management of the State’s fisheries, shape  
 responses to climate change and improve maritime safety. 

z	 Developed value-added post harvest solutions for the seafood industry contributing to industry revenue growth 
 of 8% per annum, focusing on addressing technical and trade barriers and manufacturing profitability.

z	 Demonstrated sensory attributes of exported Australian vacuum-packed lamb designed to maintain quality with
 extended storage, providing industry with confidence to pursue this form of packaging.

z	 Completed a three-year study into root zone water, salinity and nutrient management providing new knowledge
 and tools for horticulture producers to actively monitor and manage salinity.

z	 Quantified the extent of insecticide resistance in diamondback moths, a key horticulture pest, and continued 
 evaluating alternative approaches for their control.

z	 Supported the SA Government in its capacity building program assisting the Ministry of Agriculture and Fisheries 
 in Timor-Leste.

z	 Developed the Graduate Access Program to support placement of engineering, management, food technology 
 and marketing graduates in the SA food industry, focussing on government support for the food industry in areas 
 of market failure.

z	 Led development through Marine Innovation SA (MISA) of the $2.4 million Aquatic Biocontainment facility 
 co-located with the Veterinary School at Roseworthy. 

z	 Secured Australia’s international trade in plant and plant products by maintaining a favourable plant health status
 critical to the long term viability of Australia’s plant industry.

z	 Ensured the integrity of harvested grains, reduced chemical resistance issues and maintained market access for 
 SA grains producers by developing novel methods to detect pests in grain stores.

z	 Partnered with Commonwealth Government and Meat and Livestock Australia in reducing the emissions from 
 Livestock Research Program which significantly reduces methane emissions while maintaining livestock productivity 
 for a viable agriculture industry.  

z	 Produced hatchery reared mussel spat to help SA mussel growers in their effort to create the State’s first 
 commercial mussel hatchery.
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Performance Summary: SARDI

z	 Released new pasture plant Messina for SA’s saltland. This important agricultural discovery is an outstanding option
 for saline waterlogged environments where commercial legumes fail to survive.

z	 Developed a Vegetable Carbon Calculator for the Australia vegetable industry assisting growers to calculate their
 farms’ carbon footprint.

z	 Achieved improved results for SA cucumber and capsicum greenhouse growers through a sustainable approach to
 disease management.

z	 Led a project to select the best species and explore farming options for large-scale macroalgae aquaculture. With
 the aim being that SA producers harvesting macroalgae from land-based farms will be able to collect carbon credits.

z	 Developed, in conjunction with the University of Adelaide, effective control strategies for eutypa dieback, an insidious
 disease of grapevines.

z	 Developed alternative prawn net design expected to bring major benefits both to the environment and industry, 
 reducing catches of non-target species and improving prawn catches and reducing fuel costs. The holes of the mesh 
 remain fully open when trawled through the water, even during large catches.  As a result, small fish and prawns  
 escape more easily and towing efficiency improves.

z	 Launched two premium red lentil varieties, strengthening SA’s standing in world markets as a quality producer; 
 developed new varieties of lentils, beans and peas in collaboration with Pulse Breeding Australia; released new hay, 
 oat and lentil varieties offering higher yields and disease resistance; released new grazing tolerant lucerne variety, 
 SARDI Grazer, to be commercially available to farmers for the first time.

z	 Co-located Food SA with the SARDI Food Innovation and Food Safety teams on the Waite Campus to facilitate a
 closer working relationship between Food SA, SARDI, PIRSA and the University of Adelaide. This will streamline 
 services to the SA food industry to encourage innovation and growth of the industry.

z	 Boosted marine environmental health with the development of methodologies for detecting and quantifying key 
 marine pests at Australian ports. Trials have begun for DNA-based methodologies for the 2011 Port Adelaide marine 
 pest survey and in plankton samples from the Port of Fremantle in Western Australia.

z	 Advanced climate change adaptation with the design of strategies for the adaptive management of terrestrial and
 marine productive and native systems under pressure from climate change. With financial support from the Premier’s 
 Science Research Fund, the South Australian Transect for Environmental Monitoring and Decision-making (TREND) 
 network with the University of Adelaide was established.  

z	 Developed a hydrodynamic/biogeochemical modelling facility for Australia’s southern shelves and gulfs to quantify
 the link between ocean circulation and the space-time dynamics of the plankton ecosystem in these areas. This will 
 help predict the transport of sediments and their interaction with marine life and impact on coastal morphology.  

Targets for 2011-12
z	 Contribute to the scientific basis of the long-term water allocation plans for the Mount Lofty Ranges looking at
 climate change impacts on plant growth models, the impact of climate change projections on plant growth and 
 water resources in the Onkaparinga catchment, and validation of catchment hydrological models.

z	 Build on the Food Innovation/Food SA Graduate Access Program with the placement of 15 graduates from a range
 of food technology, science engineering and management and marketing courses in the food industry. The program 
 facilitates mentoring, professional support and industry networking opportunities for recent graduates.
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Performance Summary: SARDI

Targets for 2011-12
z	 Increase the value of the sardine and abalone industries through the development of new value-added products
 and optimising post-harvest value-added processes.

z	 Deliver to market a new pest and disease resistant Lucerne variety, bred to withstand heavy grazing pressure to
 fill a gap in the availability of varieties for cropping areas. The new variety will benefit both livestock producers and 
 grain growers by providing additional feed sources as well as providing rotational benefits of increased soil  
 nitrogen, improved soil structure and a reduction of cereal root diseases.

z	 Examine the potential integration of SARDI into the University of Adelaide. The union would strengthen the ability
 of the collective research and development capabilities to deliver innovation to SA’s agricultural, fishing, aquaculture 
 and food industries as well as sustain their supporting environment. 
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Group Executive Directorate

Minerals and Energy Resources

The Mining and Petroleum industries play a key role to the economic development of the State, and the Mineral and 
Energy Resources Directorate ensures that the focus remains on the business of attracting and delivering new  
minerals and energy projects (conventional and unconventional) to South Australia. 

The Mineral and Energy Resources Directorate is made up of three key divisions: 

• Mineral Resources 

• Petroleum and Geothermals 

• Olympic Dam Taskforce 

The directorate plays an essential role in managing SA’s mineral resources on behalf the State.

Attached to PIRSA in mid 2011 The Olympic Dam Task Force, is facilitating BHP Billiton’s proposed expansion of the 
Olympic Dam mine and leading negotiations on a new indenture.

The new structure provides the opportunity for the divisions to build on their partnership model with Government 
and industry and extend / leverage technological innovation.

And through collaboration with the Strategy, Policy and People Directorate, they can also participate in broader policy 
debates.  

The vision of the directorate is to make SA the favoured location for private mineral investment, with exploration 
expenditure to be maintained at more than $100 million per annum by 2010, and mineral production and processing 
to reach $4 billion by 2020.

Performance Summary 



27

P I R S A  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 0 - 1 1

Performance Summary: Minerals and Energy Resources

SA Strategic Plan Targets

Objective 1 - Growing Prosperity

ECONOMIC GROWTH (T1.1)

COMPETITIVE BUSINESS CLIMATE (T1.2)

BUSINESS INVESTMENT (T1.5)

PERFORMANCE IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR (T1.7, T1.8, T1.9)

JOBS (T1.10)

MINERALS EXPLORATION (T1.17)

MINERALS PRODUCTION (T1.18)

MINERALS PROCESSING (T.19)

STRATEGIC INFRASTRUCTURE (T1.21)

Objective 3 - Attaining Sustainability

NO SPECIES LOSS (T3.1)

MARINE BIODIVERSITY (T3.4)

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS REDUCTION (T3.5)

ECOLOGICAL FOOTPRINT (T3.7)

ZERO WASTE (T3.8)

RENEWABLE ENERGY (T3.12)

ABORIGINAL LANDS (T3.15)

Objective 4 - Fostering Creativity

CREATIVE INDUSTRIES (T4.1)

BUSINESS INNOVATION (T4.7)

AUSTRALIAN GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURE (T4.10)

BUSINESS EXPENDITURE (T4.11)

Objective 6 - Expanding Opportunity

• HIGHER EDUCATION (T6.20)



28

P I R S A  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 0 - 1 1

Minerals Resources Division
The Mineral Resources Division manages the State’s mineral resources on behalf of all South Australians by:

• Regulating mining operations

• Implementing significant exploration initiatives

• Providing comprehensive, high-quality geoscientific data and advice

• Developing sustainable practices for exploration and mining

• Facilitating mineral resource projects through approval processes

• Developing an effective and efficient policy and legislative framework 

• Collecting mineral royalties and fees. 

The focus of the Resources and Energy Sector Infrastructure Council (RESIC) is to facilitate strategic and  
collaborative partnerships with industry and government to plan and recommend appropriate infrastructure for the 
resources and energy sector. 

Through the provision of accurate data and a holistic approach to planning, both private and public infrastructure  
providers will be better informed to accurately plan the development of viable, fit-for-purpose infrastructure that 
meets the needs of the sector.

Petroleum and Geothermal Division 
The Petroleum and Geothermal division manages SA’s upstream petroleum and geothermal resources on behalf of its 
citizens. It is the lead agency ensuring ecologically sustainable petroleum and geothermal exploration and development 
in the State.

The division regulates operations, provides comprehensive, high quality geoscientific data and advice, establishes a 
framework for sustainable practices for exploration and development, supports projects through approval processes, 
develops an effective and efficient policy and legislative framework and collects royalties and fees.

Achievements for 2010-11
Minerals Resources Division
z	 Mineral exploration expenditure in SA for the year to March 2011 totalled $217.6 million - 8.2% of total Australian  
 mineral exploration expenditure - exceeding the SA Strategic Plan (SASP) Target T1.17 of maintaining exploration   
 expenditure above $100 million per year.

z	 The combined minerals and petroleum exploration figures for the year to March 2011 was $261 million for SA. 

z	 In 2010 mineral production reached a record high of $4.0 billion. This significant increase is due to a better than
 expected first full year production from Oz Minerals Prominent Hill, copper-gold-silver mine and the return to full 
 production at BHP Billiton’s Olympic Dam,  copper-gold-uranium-silver mine, in May 2010.

Performance Summary: Minerals and Energy Resources
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Performance Summary: Minerals and Energy Resources

z	 SA led the country in copper exploration expenditure for the year to March 2011.  This key commodity continues
 to be a high priority for explorers in the State. The March quarter expenditure across Australia for copper was 
 $25.1 million or 40.1%.

z	 A lead indicator for growth in mineral exploration activity and investment in SA is the total drilling metres 
 approved for active exploration licences across the State. PIRSA approved mineral drilling projects totalling more 
 than 1 000 000 metres in the 2010 calendar year, an increase of about 35% to 2009 drilling work approvals.

z	 SA’s mining boom continued to gain momentum with four new mines commencing production/construction 
 during 2010-11 taking the number of major metal mines to 16. The new mines were OZ Minerals’ Ankata  
 underground copper-gold mine, OneSteel’s Iron Chieftain iron ore mine, Beverley North ISR uranium mine and 
 Kanmantoo copper- gold mine. 

z	 Maintained strong global confidence in SA’s minerals sector with Canada’s 2010-11 Fraser Institute World Mining
 Company Survey ranking SA in the top 11of global jurisdictions for the Mineral Policy Index and equal first in 
 the world for Geological Databases. 

z	 The launch of SARIG 2020 represented the completion of phase-two of a major two-year redevelopment of the
 South Australian Resources Information Geoserver (SARIG). SARIG is a groundbreaking online web application 
 that provides easy access to minerals, petroleum and geothermal geoscientific information.

z	 Amendments were made to the Mining Act 1971 through the Mining (Miscellaneous) Amendment Act 2010. The new
 Mining Regulations 2011 came into operation on 1 July 2011.

z	 Continued targeted promotion of SA’s mineral prospectivity both nationally and internationally.

z	 The Saskatchewan and PIRSA Memorandum of Understanding continued to produce results during 2010-11 with
 the Canadian release of the Athabasca Basin 3D model and the South Australian release of data for the  
 Cariewerloo Basin Unconformity – Related Uranium Project. 

z	 The Institute for Mineral and Energy Resources (IMER) which encompasses several University of Adelaide research
 centres, including the Centre for Mineral Exploration Under Cover, Centre for Energy Technology (CET), the SA 
 Centre for Geothermal Energy Research (SACGER) and the Centre for Tectonics, Resources and Exploration was 
 officially launched by the Hon Paul Holloway MLC in October 2010. 

z	 The CRC Deep Exploration Technologies was launched in November 2010 with research conducted across eight
  years valued at approximately $100 million.

z	 RESIC’s 2011 Infrastructure Demand Study was conducted to gather data on the resource sector’s future 
 infrastructure requirements.

PACE Initiative: Achievements in 2010-11
z	 The new PACE 2020 initiative (2010-2014) commenced. It aims to unlock new areas for exploration, further
 streamlining the process from exploration to mine development and provide better data delivery services to the 
 resources industry. Projects will be conducted across four themes: exploration, mining, global and energy. 

z	 PACE 2020 achievements include: The release of SARIG 2020, State Gravity Map, Cariewerloo Basin unconformity   
 uranium and Frome AEM datasets and PACE Geochronology Round 1.

z	 Round Six of Collaborative Drilling Early, included Braemar Iron/Royal Resources and Vulcan IOCG/Tasman 
 Resources.

z	 PACE Geochronology 2010 program was completed and the 2011 program was announced. Highlights for 2010
 included dating of mineralisation at the Hillside Cu-Au deposit (Rex Minerals) and identification of the oldest rocks 
 in SA (Centrex Metals).
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z	 PACE Targeting 2011 was announced. The program promotes first-pass exploration in Greenfield areas and areas
 of poor data density using a range of geophysical methods at the tenement-scale.

z	 Since the PACE funded PIRSA/SACOME Geoscientist Assistance Program commenced in October 2009 it has
 provided assistance to 29 SA based mining raduate/professionals. 

Petroleum and Geothermal: Achievements in 2010-11 
z	 Continued its compliance monitoring role for exploration, drilling and production activities including assessment
 and validation of 13 fitness-for-purpose reports and 11 assessments of management system effectiveness,  
 undertaken by licensees. 

z	 Two new statements of environmental objectives were approved and gazetted.

z	 104 annual compliance reports were submitted to the division for review. 

z	 The Petroleum and Geothermal Energy Act compliance report for 2010 was released in May 2011. It details 
 compliance of the industries regulated under the Act for the year 2010. 

Targets for 2011-12

Minerals Resources Division

z	 Maintain production levels above the SASP Mineral Production target T1.18 of $3 billion.

z	 Continue to be the principal contributor to SA exports and increase the proportion of total State merchandise   
 exports.

z	 Maintain ongoing involvement with the assessment of BHP Billiton’s Olympic Dam expansion.

z	 Facilitate a minimum of two mining developments to achieve final approvals and move into construction.

z	 Deliver an infrastructure online channel, an interactive and online application that provides an overview of the
 State’s key infrastructure.

z	 Deliver results from the 2011 Infrastructure Demand Study, identifing the infrastructure demands of the State’s
 resource and energy sectors.

z	 Assist a minimum of two significant mining developments to achieve final approvals and move into construction. 

z	 Maintain exploration expenditure levels above the SASP Mineral Exploration target T1.17 of $100 million, including
 geothermal prospects.

z	 Complete phase-two of the redevelopment of SARIG.

z	 Implement work programs associated with new PACE 2020’s themes: exploration, mining, global and energy.

z	 Maintain leadership in nationally significant native title agreements in the minerals and petroleum sectors.

z	 Continue to increase SA’s share of national exploration expenditure to levels surpassed only by WA.

z	 Continue to increase SA’s world ranking for mineral potential and mining policy while also maintaining our position
 as a national leader.

z	 Maintain PIRSA’s world number one ranking for the delivery of geoscientific information.

Performance Summary: Minerals and Energy Resources
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Performance Summary: Minerals and Energy Resources

Targets for 2011-12

Petroleum and Geothermal Division

z	 Entice exploration investment to under-explored SA basins, in particular to the onshore Officer and Arckaringa
 basins, and the offshore Bight Basin.

z	 Entice exploration and appraisal of unconventional gas resources in the State.

z	 Maintain the lead in national geothermal exploration investment by:

	 z	 Attracting, stewarding and facilitating investment in proof-of-concept and demonstration projects.

	 z	 Negotiating with Commonwealth agencies to implement enabling regulations, programs and policies 
  for geothermal energy projects.

	 z	 Identifying opportunities to advance geothermal energy development by supporting national technical 
  interest groups and targeted research through SACGER. As well as maintain international research and  
  development linkages with peak geothermal agencies.

z	 Maintain and enhance practice regulation of the upstream petroleum and geothermal industries.

z	 Develop a draft roadmap to support unconventional gas development, facilitated through work of the Roundtable
 for Unconventional Gas Technologies and Infrastructure.

Olympic Dam Task Force (ODTF) 
The ODTF is facilitating BHP Billiton’s proposed expansion of the Olympic Dam mine and leading negotiations on a 
new indenture. Its role involves coordinating interactions between BHP Billiton and the State Government;  
coordinating and overseeing management of the response within government to the project, in terms of  
infrastructure, policy and regulatory requirements and maximising benefits for SA from the expansion and associated 
projects.

The Government’s interaction with the Olympic Dam expansion project is being overseen by the ODTF through 
a Chief Executive, Paul Heithersay to work directly with the Minister Assisting the Premier with the Olympic Dam 
Expansion Project, the proponent and other major stakeholders.

The ODTF is a former separate public authority that was integrated into PIRSA’s Mineral and Energy Resources 
Directorate, while maintaining policy independence in June 2011.  

The key purpose behind the integration of the OTDF was to maximise government administrative efficiencies and 
ensure the project could be approved and progress within the given timeframe. 

If approved the project will contribute to achieving the following SA Strategic Plan Targets:

Objective 1 - Growing Prosperity 

• T1.1 Economic Growth

• T1.5 Business Investment

• T1.18 Minerals production

• T1.19 Minerals processing
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Performance Summary: Minerals and Energy Resources

Olympic Dam Task Force: Achievements 2010-11
z	 By enticing exploration investment to under-explored SA basins, in particular to the onshore Officer and Arckaringa
 The ODTF addressed with BHP Billiton major issues arising from its Environmental Impact Statement (EIS); and 
 subsequently:

	 z	 Together with key State Government agencies, reviewed BHP Billiton’s draft Supplementary EIS to ensure 
  the issues raised in the public and government submissions on the draft EIS were addressed adequately. 

 z	 The State Government, in conjunction with the Commonwealth and Northern Territory Governments,
  determined that sufficient additional information had been provided for government to assess the proposal 
  and commenced preparation of a draft assessment report for Ministerial consideration.  

	 z	 Led the government negotiations with BHP Billiton on revised indenture arrangements. 

Targets for 2011-12

Olympic Dam Task Force

z	 Deliver an Assessment Report to enable SA Government to make a development decision on the proposed 
 expansion, in conjunction with decisions by both the Commonwealth and Northern Territory Governments.

• Negotiate agreement with BHP Billiton on revised indenture arrangements, to be placed before Parliament.



33

P I R S A  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 0 - 1 1

Performance Summary 

Group Executive Directorates
Strategy, Policy and People 
Portfolio Services 

The agency support functions, previously provided under the Corporate Division, were realigned as part of a review 
of PIRSA. The new Portfolio Services group retained the core support functions of finance and asset management, 
information and communication technology (ICT), risk management and audit, and business support. 

The new grouping of Strategy, Policy and People absorbed the policy and planning, human resources and strategic 
communications functions from the former Corporate Division. Investment and strategic projects; as well as industry, 
regional and community engagement (formerly sustainable systems) from other areas of PIRSA also joined the new 
Strategy, Policy and People group. 

This ensures greater emphasis on policy development and analysis on cross-cutting issues as the two new groups 
work collaboratively with PIRSA divisions.

Legal services are available through service level agreement with the Crown Solicitor’s Office.

The agency support area also provides services to external clients:  Human resources and ICT services to Defence 
SA, full ICT services to the SA Motor Sport Board, including key events such as the Clipsal 500 and some ICT services 
to the Department for Water and the Department of Planning and Local Government. 
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SA Strategic Plan Targets

Objective 1 - Growing Prosperity

ECONOMIC GROWTH (T1.1)

PERFORMANCE IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR – CUSTOMER AND CLIENT SATISFACTION WITH GOVERNMENT 
SERVICES (T1.7)

PERFORMANCE IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR – GOVERNMENT DECISION-MAKING (T1.8)

PERFORMANCE IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR – ADMINISTRATIVE EFFICIENCY (T1.9)

TOTAL EXPORTS (T1.14)

STRATEGIC INFRASTRUCTURE (T1.21)

DIVERSITY IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR – PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES (T6.22)

DIVERSITY IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR – WOMEN (T6.23)

DIVERSITY IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR – ABORIGINAL PEOPLE (T6.24)

ABORIGINAL UNEMPLOYMENT (T1.26)

The new Strategy, Policy and People group features the Divisions of:

• Investment and Strategic Projects – Formerly Commercial Investment

• Industry, Regional and Community Engagement – Formerly Sustainable Systems in the Agriculture, Food and  
 Wine Division

• People, Learning and Culture – Formerly Human Resources

• Policy and Planning  - Formerly Corporate Strategy and Policy

• Office of the Chief Executive, including Strategic Communications

The directorate was established to facilitate greater cross-agency collaboration, with key business outputs for each 
division aimed at working towards policy and strategic project coordination and delivery, such as:

• Leadership of cross-cutting policy formulation

• Coordination of PIRSA planning processes

• Liaison with government as required

• Coordination of PIRSA ministerial liaison

• Coordination of PIRSA’s overall strategic projects portfolio

• Leadership of investment attraction facilitation

• Coordination of Regional and Community engagement processes

• Development of PIRSA guidelines to industry engagement and assessment of industry group performance

• Evaluation of PIRSA programs and benchmarking

• Facilitation of PIRSA organisational and culture change initiatives

• Oversight of PIRSA’s leadership and talent development strategy and policy

Performance Summary: Strategy, Policy and People
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Performance Summary: Strategy, Policy and People

Achievements for 2010-11

Policy and Planning 

z	 Facilitated the development of PIRSA’s cost recovery framework.

z	 Provided economic analysis and policy advice towards the development of SA Government water policy.

z	 Integrated strategic planning and reporting into PIRSA’s risk management framework.

People, Learning and Culture 

z	 Trialled a successful performance management and development (PM&D) reporting tool to ensure timely and 
 accurate reporting of PM&D activity.

z	 Enhanced agency leadership capacity through delivery of an intensive Leadership Development Program completed
 by 17 emerging PIRSA leaders. Continued developing governance and management skills through other programs 
 in PM&D, Fraud Prevention, Financial Management and Working with Diversity.

z	 Won funding through the Commonwealth Productivity Places Program to support 72 PIRSA staff to achieve 
 diploma level qualifications. 

z	 Commenced New Horizons, a PIRSA-wide project to implement the recommendations from the organisational
 review.

z	 Implemented a mandatory two-day induction program delivering critical public sector and agency information,
 particularly in relation to OHS&W, Code of Ethics, diversity and PM&D.

z	 Supported executive and senior management in achieving budget savings targets through the management of the
  targeted voluntary separation package scheme (TVSP) process in PIRSA. This has resulted in 35 separations as at 
 30 June 2011. 

z	 Collaborated on the Working Arrangements Project with UniSA Centre for Work+Life and Public Sector 
 Performance Commission. The Online survey completed with a 30% PIRSA employee response rate. Survey results 
 indicated that 60% of PIRSA employees have caring responsibilities, and that 90% of requests for flexibility are  
 accepted. Final report and recommendations are due February 2012. 

z	 Arranged the Work-Life Wellbeing workshops for leaders which were conducted in November 2010, introducing
 PIRSA leaders to the concept of Work-Life Wellbeing.

Office of the Chief Executive 

z	 Developed Ministerial Correspondence policy.

z	 Managed and coordinated annual estimates briefings.

z	 Developed draft documentation outlining Cabinet Submissions processes and requirements.
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Strategic Communications 

z	 Ensured timely and proactive communications programs to promote PIRSA’s achievements, business imperatives,
 programs, emergency response and community awareness both externally and internally.

z	 Provided an effective and proactive media and community campaign to support Biosecurity SA’s spring locust 
 offensive, utilising text messages, media relations, web presence, fact sheets and community meetings. 

z	 Won the Best Public Relations Campaign (government or private) category in the prestigious 2011 SA media
  Awards, for the spring 2010 Australian Plague Locust response.

z	 Provided communications support - both media and advertising - for the annual Fruit Fly Community Awareness
 Campaign and Biosecurity SA’s operational response to the outbreak in Port Augusta West

z	 Produced quality publications to journalistic standards including the flagship Prime Time magazine and Milestones. 
 Frequency of internal communications was increased to ensure monthly celebration of innovation and  
 dissemination of key messages to staff. Prime Time and Connections newsletter covering the Portfolio Services, and
 Strategy Policy and People Divisions included interactive elements such as video and podcast links to further  
 embrace digital media.  

Investment and Strategic Projects

z	 Executed a deed of licence to enable access to the Brukunga mine site by the Deep Exploration Technology 
 Cooperative Research Centre. 

z	 Finalised an audit of the State’s infrastructure to identify infrastructure gaps and support future infrastructure 
 planning for the resources sector.

z	 Facilitated the development and implementation of a national primary industries innovation and extension system, 
 including the development of  guiding principles and a review of primary industries extension capabilities across the 
 nation.

z	 Established a recycled water use program and framework with the McLaren Vale Water Plan Committee resulting
 in an additional 50 ML of recycled water contracted in 2010-11. This is designed to trigger the uptake of a further 
 285 ML during the next five years.

z	 Facilitated the potential for establishment of new aquaculture infrastructure in the Spencer Gulf by supporting
 Whyalla Council in selecting and identifying site options for a new facility. 

z	 Revised conditions under the Penola Pulp Mill Authorisation Act 2007 have been agreed in lieu of amendments.

z	 Engaged with the services sector and the SA Government Special Envoy in China in a pilot investment initiative in
 Guangzhou, Guangdong China, to attract future investment to SA. The initiative utilised the Chinese networks of 
 three service sector companies and was the first foray for the SA Government into the Chinese province. Local 
 SA food and wine were showcased at the event to potential Chinese buyers.

Industry, Regional and Community Engagement

z	 Finalised management and delivery of the State Drought Response Program on behalf of State Government which
 provided a dedicated, collaborative effort across government and connected to the community through regional 
 task forces. Tabling the final report on the programs achievements to Cabinet.

z	 Won the Building Communities category in the 2010 Premier’s Awards which highlights excellence in the public
 sector.
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Performance Summary: Strategy, Policy and People

z	 Finalised development of mapping for areas of primary production significance, meeting requirements under the 
 30 Year Plan for Greater Adelaide.

z	 Finalised the development of an SA River Murray Irrigated Agriculture Strategy to drive policy and programs 
 supporting irrigated industries and communities. 

z	 Delivered course 11, the final South Australian Rural Leadership Program which provided training to assist future
 agricultural leaders to develop the skills they require to be successful. 

z	 Finalised production of PIRSA’s Climate Change Management Framework, to assist primary industries managing
 the adaptation to and mitigation of the impacts of climate change.

Targets for 2011-12
Policy and Planning

z	 Initiate industry competitiveness and benchmarking program.

z	 Integrate economic analysis into PIRSA’s policy development.

People, Learning and Culture

z	 Implement an electronic performance development and training management system to facilitate organisational
 development, talent management, training delivery, PM&D and OHS&W training and reporting compliance.

z	 Provide leadership in the implementation of New Horizons change initiatives.

Strategic Communications 

z	 To further explore and embrace social media across PIRSA and its divisions.

z	 Continue to ensure increased staff knowledge and engagement in the change management process through 
 effective and relevant communications.

Investment and Strategic Projects

z	 Facilitate the process and lodgement of an environmental impact statement supporting the establishment of a rare
 earth chemical processing plant in Whyalla.

z	 Facilitate lodgement of a development application and the related development assessment process for a 
 multi-species abattoir at Port Pirie.

z	 Facilitate the implementation of the National Primary Industries Research Development and Extension Framework
 to enhance the provision of primary industries extension services in Australia.

z	 Facilitate the preparation and lodgement of a public environmental report to support the development of a deep
 water bulk minerals port and related infrastructure at Sheep Hill.
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Performance Summary: Strategy, Policy and People

z	 Provide ongoing management and delivery of the Resources and Energy Sector Infrastructure Council (RESIC)
 Strategic Plan 2010–12.

z	 Provide management of the Inter-Government Agency Community Consultation Program for Whyalla.

z	 Delivery of Resources & Energy Infrastructure Demand Study that will identify common needs for future 
 infrastructure across several timeframes to 2020 and beyond.

z	 Facilitate the relocation and expansion of a large food processing company, including the exit from their existing
 site. 

Industry, Regional and Community Engagement

z	 Develop a PIRSA community engagement framework and collate case studies of best practise community 
 engagement.

z	 Develop the evaluation and review process for PIRSA’s industry and community engagement based on models 
 of best practise.

z	 Identify and develop relationships with key and primary stakeholders across regional communities including 
 Natural Resource Management, Regional Development Australia and Local Government Australia.

z	 Identify and coordinate opportunities for Aboriginal participation across the primary industries sectors through
 improved engagement.

z	 Assist Women in Agriculture and Business group and the Advisory Board of Agriculture to become financially 
 self sufficient while fostering an ongoing working relationship between these organisations and PIRSA. 
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Performance Summary: Portfolio Services

SA Strategic Plan Targets

Objective 1 - Growing Prosperity

PERFORMANCE IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR – CUSTOMER AND CLIENT SATISFACTION WITH GOVERNMENT 
SERVICES (T1.7)

PERFORMANCE IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR – GOVERNMENT DECISION-MAKING (T1.8)

PERFORMANCE IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR – ADMINISTRATIVE EFFICIENCY (T1.9)

ABORIGINAL UNEMPLOYMENT (T1.26)

Portfolio Services has adopted a new partnering approach to address the challenges from the PIRSA restructure, to 
improve the value of the relationship between agency support services by:

• Identifying and realising opportunities to achieve a best for PIRSA outcome.

• Achieving a better alignment of service provision with divisional needs.

• Providing greater transparency and understanding of the costs of service provision.

• Enhancing information sharing about business activities, roles, functions and resource capability. 

Portfolio Services (previously reported under the title of Agency Support) provides governance and business support 
service to PIRSA divisions and some external clients.  

Capitalising on the integrated business model which was implemented in 2009-10, Portfolio Services commenced a 
new framework in April 2011 for working collaboratively with divisions to meet budget pressures and service delivery 
expectations in an outlook of constrained resources in the coming years. 

The Portfolio Services group features the functions of:

• Business Services

• Finance and Asset Management 

• Information and Communication Technology

• Risk Management and Audit

Portfolio Services also comprises the Rural Solutions SA Division, a fully self-funded commercial business that is 
reported separately in this report. Portfolio Services also provides legal services through an arrangement with the 
Crown Solicitors Office.

Achievements for 2010-11
Business Services
z	 Introduced the e-procurement solution to enable purchasing, invoice approvals and payments to be managed 
 online.

z	 Reviewed PIRSA’s vehicle fleet to assess cost effectiveness.
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Performance Summary: Portfolio Services

z	 Implemented a review system to improve fleet vehicle log sheet compliance, this led to a 19% reduction in 
 FBT liability. 

z	 Conducted a post implementation review of the Objective Electronic Document and Records Management System
 (EDRMS) Software identifying and developing strategies to improve the use of Objective across the agency.  

z	 Implemented the new version of Objective 7.3.5.

z	 Developed a cost attribution model for regional sites shared by PIRSA divisions.

z	 Continued to support environmental awareness by promoting PIRSA’s media recycling program, and the ‘Friday
 File Fling’ and stationery turn-in days.

Finance and Asset Management
z	 Continued to provide support to the Budget sub-committee of PIRSA Executive to oversee financial management
 of the agency.

z	 Assisted the agency to manage the budget measures announced in the 2009-10 and 2010-11 State Budgets, 
 including the targeted voluntary separation package scheme (TVSP). 

z	 Approved 922 grants and loans worth a total of $25.5 million under a variety of schemes such as the Exceptional
 Circumstances Interest Subsidy, drought support, branched broomrape, Locust Rebate and Loans to Cooperatives.

z	 Implemented site security plans for all PIRSA sites across the State.

z	 Coordinated the relocation of a number of PIRSA sites. This included moving PIRSA divisions from Birkenhead 
 to Marina Adelaide, Largs North and Prospect to Glenside. 

z	 Assisted with the upgrade of the quarantine station located at Ceduna. 

Information and Communication Technology (ICT)
z	 Piloted a Collaboration and Communication Environment using Microsoft SharePoint and Microsoft
 Lync Services to improve communication within the agency.

z	 Provided ICT and mapping support to the Locust Eradication program including the provision of mapping staff in
 regional Local Disease Control Centres.

z	 Upgraded agency business software including the Microsoft Office 2007 and Environmental Systems Research 
 Institute (ESRI) spatial mapping software.

z	 Established a spatial data sharing environment within the Resources & Infrastructure Cluster of agencies to 
 improve data quality and accessibility.

z	 Developed, tested and implemented a proof of concept identity management model to ensure that information
 and individuals using PIRSA online applications are secure.

z	 Implemented centralised purchasing model for printers and photocopiers.  This resulted in a more efficient use
 of devices and increased use of multi-function devices.

z	 Continued work to consolidate business unit licensing, registration and compliance application processing to 
 the agency wide Primary Industries Information Management System (PIIMS).  Providing Biosecurity SA’s Plant 
 Health business group with a solution for their accreditation and compliance processing requirements.
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Performance Summary: Portfolio Services

Risk Management and Audit
z	 Updated 12 risk profiles across PIRSA divisions.

z	 Completed seven internal audits as per approved internal audit plan.

z	 Updated the business continuity plans across all PIRSA divisions.

z	 Updated Risk Management Policy and PIRRISK systems compliant with Global International Standard Organisation
 (ISO) 31000.

Targets for 2011-12
Business Services
z	 Implement new vehicle policy and procedures.

z	 Coordinate the implementation of Service Level Schedules, to deliver agency support services across PIRSA in line
 with the organisation review.

Finance and Asset Management
z	 Assist the agency to implement budget measures approved as part of the 2009-10, 2010-11 and 2011-12 State Budgets.

z	 Prepare a full business case to investigate options for a 20-year strategy for the Minerals and Energy Resources Drill
 Core Library.

Information and Communication Technology (ICT)
z	 Develop an online service delivery solution for Biosecurity SA, Animal Health and Fisheries and Aquaculture to reduce
 back-end office manual processes.

z	 Development of an online transactional update service for Biosecurity SA property registrations and Fisheries and
  Aquaculture production returns and quota balance statements.

z	 Upgrade the PlanView Project Management application for use across all of PIRSA’s Business Divisions.

z	 Enhance the spatial data sharing environment within the Resource and Infrastructure cluster of government agencies
 to a full production model, further improving data accessibility.

z	 Commence planning for the transition of ICT Helpdesk and End User Computing support to Shared Services SA
 scheduled to commence in March 2012.

z	 Implement a production collaboration and communication environment using Microsoft SharePoint and Microsoft
 Lync Services; this will improve communication within the agency.

Risk Management and Audit
z	 Continue to update and maintain risk profiles for all PIRSA divisions within an 18 month timeframe.
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Performance Summary: Rural Solutions SA

SA Strategic Plan Targets

Objective 1 - Growing Prosperity

EXPORTS (T1.14)

MINERALS PRODUCTION (T1.18)

PERFORMANCE IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR – ADMINISTRATIVE EFFICIENCY (T1.9)

Objective 3 - Attaining Sustainability

LAND BIODIVERSITY (T3.2) 

SOIL PROTECTION (T3.3)

Objective 5 - Building Communities

ABORIGINAL LEADERSHIP (T5.7)

REGIONAL POPULATION LEVELS (T5.9)

Rural Solutions SA is a South Australian Government-owned business, operating as a division of PIRSA providing 
unique agri-business extension and consultancy services to government, industry and community groups. It delivers 
a wide range of programs and projects to customers on a fee-for-service basis, and operates from regional locations 
across SA delivering projects around the State, nationally and internationally. 

Rural Solutions SA has diverse consulting skills, with highly connected and credible consultants knowledgeable in areas 
of current and future need including food, fibre, wine, forestry, minerals, natural resource management (NRM) and 
community engagement. 

Seed Services Australia is a unit within Rural Solutions SA that provides seed certification and seed testing services 
across Australia on a fee-for-service basis, maintaining a dominant share in the competitive national market. This is the 
State’s only commercial seed testing and certification provider, and it enables Australia’s largest production area of 
Lucerne seed to be exported, as well as a range of other crops.

To ensure ongoing business performance Pricewaterhouse Coopers (PwC) was engaged to conduct a business  
viability review to provide a solid basis for the future as a viable public sector business.

Achievements for 2010-11
z	 Provided a range of agricultural, environmental and community consulting services generating more than 
 $21 million in revenue, with $11 million in environmental solutions, $7 million in industry services and $3 million 
 in community programs. 

z	 Provided technical design and project management for the largest bio remediation project in the Southern 
 Hemisphere, planting 500 000 seedlings for the Coorong and Lower Lakes Bioremediation project for the  
 Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR).
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z	 SA Government Public Authorities have been advised in the State Procurement Board’s, Use of Established 
 Government Facilities Policy that Rural Solutions SA is a supplier of professional and technical services that can be 
 used without undertaking a competitive process. This resulted in an increase in work for State Government  
 agencies.

z	 Provided a wide range of services to NRM Boards across the State, including regional pest management planning,
 surveys and control programs, monitoring and evaluation, soil and vegetation management.  Also provided  
 executive-level support to several boards on governance and performance matters.

z	 In partnership with Biosecurity SA, Rural Solutions SA led several components of both the State and Federal feral
 camel management project.  This included population surveys, control, implementation planning, coordination of 
 removal activities, community capacity building and consultation, input into policy and legislation. 

z	 Assisted Biosecurity SA to deliver the Branched Broomrape Control program including containment, surveys and
 paddock based research.

z	 In partnership with CSIRO and DENR undertook soil carbon research project aimed at benchmarking soil carbon
 storage across agricultural regions of SA. 

z	 Delivered a variety of projects within PIRSA including recognition of the value -economic, biodiversity, productive
 capability and social - of primary industry lands in Greater Adelaide. Also provided technical input to various land 
 use planning activities, including fauna survey for Brukunga mine site. 

z	 Provided a range of land management review and monitoring services to DENR, Department for Water, 
 Environment Protection Authority and Local Government.

z	 Conducted capacity audits for Loxton and Waikerie communities to evaluate strengths, weaknesses and 
 opportunities for community and regional development.

z	 Conducted business development projects for individual business operators, Indigenous Business Australia (IBA),
 Department of Workplace Relations and other clients. Including individual micro-business development for  
 horticulture on the West Coast of SA, aquaculture feasibility analysis and development of improved employment 
 outcomes for Aboriginal people throughout primary industries. 

z	 Delivered cultural awareness programs for engaging with Aboriginal people and business development programs
 for IBA. 

z	 Fulfilled executive support roles, and maintained membership on important committees that drive and support
 regional development. This includes executive support for the Murray Mallee Regional Coordination Network; 
 Penrice and Terramin Community Consultative Committees and the Sims Farm Management Committee.  
 Coordinated the Mid North ‘Young Guns’ Network and provided research officer support to the Parliamentary 
 Select Committee into the Grain Handling Industry.

z	 Delivered National Landcare programs aimed at developing tools and resources to assist farmers to maintain 
 sustainable agriculture.

z	 Provided emergency response capability by supporting the PIRSA Locust Response Program with the rapid 
 deployment of 53 emergency response trained people. Providing immediate expertise for the State control centre, 
 project management, local control centres, mapping services and field teams.  

z	 Played an integral role in the SA Government’s State-wide Drought Response Program, fulfilling key policy and
 community liaison roles. Prepared drought business plans for farm enterprises, and provided the on-ground  
 coordination of SA’s Critical Water Allocation Program.

z	 Seed Services Australia services built its national market by expanding its seed certification and seed testing 
 services to Victoria, Tasmania and Queensland. 
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z	 Contributed to the Australian Governments international aid program, providing expertise and generating revenue
 of over $3 million dollars of projects in the Middle East, India and Africa. This included training 150 agricultural 
 professionals from Iraq in SA, and Jordan in the Middle East. Key programs included seed quality and production, 
 rural extension and farm business management, with the aim to help the Iraqi Government Ministry of Agriculture 
 rebuild their country’s primary production and social cohesion. 

z	 Designed and implemented the State-wide Sheep Connect SA project for the Australian Wool Innovation Limited
 (AWI) and the Eyre Peninsula Natural Resources Management Board. 

Targets for 2011-12
z	 Complete a new three- year strategic plan.

z	 Implement an organisational restructure. 

z	 Introduce an enhanced organisational risk management framework. 

z	 Remain the provider of choice for PIRSA, including regional emergency response.

z	 Move towards a sustainable self-funding business unit by 2013-14.
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Practising Sustainability

PIRSA’s sustainability focus is on the financial, social and environmental aspects of the agency and its service delivery.  
This highlights PIRSA’s triple bottom line approach to environmental performance, an internationally recognised 
method of demonstrating sustainability.

PIRSA’s Executive team is committed to the Greening of Government Operations (GoGO) Framework,  
demonstrated by the Green PIRSA Implementation Plan and the PIRSA Environmental Policy.  By committing to 
these policies, PIRSA ensures sustainability applies equally to its external industry development focus as well as to its 
internal performance.  It also helps PIRSA support whole-of-government environmentally sustainable and eco-efficient 
practices.

Greening of Government Operations Framework
PIRSA has progressed well against each of the milestones as set within the Cabinet-endorsed GoGO Action Plan, as 
set out below:

MILESTONE 1:  
Establish Chief Executive ‘Statement of Commitment to Greening of Agency Operations’

• PIRSA’s Environmental Policy has been in place since endorsement by PIRSA Executive in December 2006.

MILESTONE 2:
Allocated resources to set up governance and initiate internal review

• PIRSA’s Corporate Executive endorsed the formation of the Green PIRSA Reference Group, which has been in  
 operation since 2005 and is the department’s lead consultative mechanism on greening/sustainability issues. The 
 structure of the reference group is currently under evaluation.

• PIRSA divisions have their own established greening governance structures.

MILESTONE 3:
Completed initial review of environmental impacts and determined priorities  
and allocated resources

• The role of the Green PIRSA Reference Group is currently under evaluation; this will influence the review of 
  environmental impacts and resources allocated.

MILESTONE 4:  
Set performance goals/internal targets (informed by SA’s Strategic Plan  
targets and/or other targets agreed by government)

• PIRSA is committed in meeting whole of government set targets within the areas of fleet, energy and water.

MILESTONE 5: 
 Approved agency implementation plan and communication plan

• PIRSA’s Green Implementation Plan was developed and endorsed in April 2006.

• Nine divisional Green Implementation Plans were endorsed in June 2007 to underpin the overall plan.

• A Communication plan was developed in 2005 and is due for review.
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Practising Sustainability

MILESTONE 6:  
Reported on status/progress in reaching performance goals/targets

• PIRSA continues to report on its progress in the areas of fleet, energy and water.

MILESTONE 7:
Initiated agency implementation plan

• PIRSA’s Green Implementation Plan has been in operation since 2006 and the re-evaluation of the Green PIRSA 
 Reference Group will impact the review of the implemented plan.

MILESTONE 8:  
Undertaking ongoing measuring, monitoring, reporting and continuous improvement  
of performance

• Reporting is underway on the priority areas of energy management, fleet management and water management 
 with work continuing on measures for other priority areas as well.

PIRSA demonstrates its ongoing commitment to greening its operations through the following initiatives:

• The endorsement of the PIRSA Travel Plan, which was launched by the Chief Executive at the PIRSA Walk to Work 
 Day in October 2010.

• Agency support conducting ‘Friday File Fling’ resulted in represented savings of six 120L of water and 108 kg  
 of CO2 equivalent (or the amount of gas represented by two 160 ‘black balloons’).

• PIRSA participates annually in the Ride to Work and Walk to Work days.
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Energy Efficiency Action Plan Report

Performance Against Annual Energy Targets  
The table below summarises PIRSA’s energy expenditure, consumption and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions 

for 2010-11 against the base-year or 2000-01 and portfolio targets.

 a Base-year figures and portfolio targets reflect changes in portfolio restructures as of 1 July 2010.

 b Base-year business measures are based on information of sites occupied in the base-year and are measured by square 
  metres (m2) and full time employees (FTE’s).

 c Figures are based on data available as of 5 August 2011. Due to billing cycles for different sites and the reporting lag between
   date of consumption and the availability of consumption data, some sites have been estimated based on previous years’  
  consumption. 

 d Greenhouse Gas emissions (GHG) have been calculated using the estimated South Australian conversion factors specified in
   the National Greenhouse Accounts Factors July 2011 – Department of Climate Change and Energy Efficiency. 

 e The portfolio target (2014) meets the government’s undertaking of a 25% reduction in energy use in government buildings 
  by 2014. 

Significant Energy Management Achievements  
• The consolidation of regional sites to central hubs, contributed to a reduction in energy consumption in  
 regional areas.

• Installation of energy efficient T5 lighting in new or refurbished areas at Waite - Plant Research  

 Centre, Largs North, Glenside - Animal Heath and new Fisheries building.

Energy consumption in buildings

(leased/owned)

2000-01 (base year) a

2000-01 (base year) business measures’ b

2010-11c

2010-11 business measures

Final Portfolio Target (2014)

Expenditure

($)

$1 558 985

1 136 $/FTE

26.7 $/m2

$2 009 929

1 647.55 $/FTE

34.62 $/m2

Energy Use

(GJ)

76372

55.67 GJ/FTE

1.3  GJ/m2

65 597

53.77 GJ/FTE

1.13 GJ/m2

57 279 e

GHG Emissions

(tonnes of CO2)

15 092

11 GHG/FTE

0.25 GHG/m2

9 039 d

7.41 GHG/FTE

0.16 GHG/m2
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Other Matters

Account Payment Peformance

Treasurer’s Instruction 11 under the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 requires all undisputed accounts to be paid 
within 30 days of the date of the invoice or claim or the date first received by the agency, unless there is a discount 
or a written agreement between the agency and the creditor.

As indicated in the table below, PIRSA paid 86% of invoices in 2010-11 on time. This compares with 95% of all  
invoices paid on time in 2009-10.

The reduction in the number of invoices paid on time compared to 2009-10 (and previous years) is reflective of  
operational problems experienced post implementation of the new E-Procurement system, PIRSA being one of the 
first agencies that went live with the system in June 2010. 

For the period July to October 2010, PIRSA’s payment performance declined to 72% of invoices paid by the due date, 
however by November 2010, all issues were rectified and payment performance was reinstated to above the 90% 
benchmark at 93% of invoices paid on time for the remainder of the 2010-11 financial year.

Account Payment Peformance 2010-2011

Contractual Arrangements
In 2009-2010, PIRSA let a contract to Clinical Laboratories Pty Ltd (t/a Gribbles) for the provision of a veterinary 
diagnostic service to the livestock (including apiary and aquatic) industries and data on the incidence and control of 
diseases and residues in livestock products.  The contract is for an initial term of three years (with extension options) 
and has a total value of $4.5 million (or $900 000 per annum).

Fraud
There were no instances of fraud in 2010-11.

Particulars

Paid by the due date

Paid within 30 days or less from the due date

Paid more than 30 days from the due date

Number

34 632

4 232

1 642

%

86

10

4

$’000

125 498

17 406

6 576

Amount paidAccounts paid

%

84

12

4
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Management of Human Resources

 Employee numbers, gender and status 

 Total number of employees

 Persons    1357

 FTEs     1220.95

 Gender   % persons   % FTEs

 Male    58.51    61.03

 Female   41.49    38.97

 Number of persons during the 10-11 financial year

 Separated from the agency     217

 Recruited to the agency     294

 Number of persons at 30 June 2011

 On leave without pay      45

 Number of employees by salary bracket 

 Salary Bracket   Male   Female  Total

 $0 - $50 399    144   120   264

 $50 400 - $64 099   176   192   368

 $64 100 - $82 099   264   192   456

 $82 100 - $103 599   169   52   221

 $103 600+    41   7   48

 TOTAL    794   563   1 357
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Management of Human Resources

Status of employees in current position

 FTEs Ongoing Short-term contract Long-term contract Other (casual) Total

 Male  433.67  40.99   227.9   42.57  745.13

 Female 294.42  37.97   128.45   14.98  475.82

 TOTAL 728.09  78.96   356.35   57.55  1 220.95

 PERSONS Ongoing Short-term contract Long-term contract Other (casual) Total

 Male  439  44   234   77  794

 Female 329  41   150   43  563

 TOTAL 768  85   384   120  1 357

Executives by gender, classification and status   

Leave Management

Average days leave per full-time equivalent employee

 Leave type              2007-08  2008-09 2009-10     2010-11

 Sick leave     6.0  6.4  6.73       6.32

 Family carer’s leave        0.8  1.0  0.87       0.86

 Miscellaneous special leave       0.4  0.4  0.36       0.50

Classification

EXEC0F

SAES1

SAES2

TOTAL

Contract untenured Total

Male

2

21

7

30

Male

2%

21%

7%

30%

Female

0

4

1

5

Female

0

4%

1%

5%
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Management of Human Resources

Workforce Diversity

Aboriginal and/or Torres Strait Islander (ATSI) employees 

Number of employees by age bracket and gender 

Cultural and linguistic diversity 

Salary bracket

$0 - $50 399

$50 400 - $64 099

$64 100 - $82 099

$83 100 - $103 599

$103 600+

TOTAL

Age bracket

15-19

20-24

25-29

30-34

35-39

40-44

45-49

50-54

55-59

60-64

65+

TOTAL

Age bracket

Number of employees born 
overseas

Number of employees who 
speak language(s) other 
than English at home

Male

98

37

Female

89

32

Total

187

69

% of agency

13.78

5.08

SA community*

20.3%

16.6%

Aboriginal staff

5

4

3

0

0

12

Male

5

24

48

82

99

89

87

137

125

69

29

794

Female

0

24

69

85

81

78

60

88

56

19

3

563

Total

5

48

117

167

180

167

147

225

181

88

32

1357

% of total

0.37

3.54

8.62

12.31

13.26

12.31

10.83

16.58

13.34

6.48

2.36

100.00

2011 Workforce benchmark

6.4%

10.4%

11.0%

10.1%

10.3%

11.0%

11.5%

11.4%

9.4%

5.5%

3.0%

100.00

Total staff

264

368

456

221

48

1 357

% of agency

1.89

1.09

0.66

0

0

0.88

Strategic Plan benchmark* 

2%

2%

2%

2%

2%

2%

* Target from SA’s Strategic Plan.

* Source:  Australian Bureau of Statistics Australian Demographic Statistics, 6291.0.55.001 Labour Force Status (ST LM8) by 
sex, age, state, marital status – employed – total from Feb78 Supertable, South Australia at May 2010.

* Benchmarks from ABS Publication Basic Community Profile (SA) Cat No 2001.0,2006 census.
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Management of Human Resources

Number of employees with disabilities  
(according to Commonwealth DDA definition) 

Types of employee disabilities 

Voluntary flexible working arrangements 

Male   Female   Total   % of agency

11    6   17   1.25%

Disability     Total   % of agency

Disability requiring workplace adaptation  17   1.25%

Physical      1   0.07%

Intellectual     0   0.00%

Sensory      1   0.07%

Psychological/Psychiatric    0   0.00%

Arrangement

Flexitime

Purchased Leave

Compressed Weeks

Part-time 

Job Share

Working from Home

Male

501

8

18

102

3

23

Female

410

3

19

191

18

16

Total

911

11

37

293

21

39

* Some employees may have multiple disabilties.

Note: Employees maybe undertaking more than one type of Flexible Working Arrangement at the same time. In this way, the total is 
unlikely to add to 100%.
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Management of Human Resources

Accredited Training Packages

Packages by classification 

Classification

ASO1

ASO2

ASO3

ASO4

ASO5

ASO6

ASO7

ASO8

GSE2

GSE4

GSE5

MAS2

MAS3

OPS1

OPS2

Classification

OPS3

OPS4

OPS5

OPS6

PO1

PO2

PO3

PO4

PO5

PO6

SAE

TGO0

TGO1

TGO2

TGO3

No. of accredited  

training packages

2

1

1

2

2

1

No. of accredited  

training packages

3

1

7

6

3

1

1

1

2

Performance Development

Documented review of individual performance management 

Leadership and management training expenditure 

Employees with...                % of total workforce

A review within the past 12 months    63

A review older than 12 months                13

No review                  24

Training and development

Total training and development expenditure

Total leadership and management 
development expenditure

Total cost

$3 209 310

$1 665 326

% of total salary expenditure

1.5%

2.8%

* The second figure is a component of the first.
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Equal Employment Opportunity Programs

Aboriginal Recruitment and Development Strategy
PIRSA is in the second year of its Aboriginal Employment Strategy 2010-15.  PIRSA has committed to  
recruiting a further three Aboriginal staff by December 2011.  Having exceeded this target already by  
recruiting a further four Aboriginal staff by 30 June 2011, the total of Aboriginal staff within the agency is 
now 1.08%.

Chief Executive Reconciliation Reference Committee (CERRC)
A review of the CERRC was conducted and a new approach has been adopted to make engagement more 
meaningful with the broader Aboriginal community by focusing on the future relationships and  
opportunities that exist.  This approach, called the Aboriginal Partner Group, is the evolution of the  
CERRC and replaces its functions and focus.

Reconciliation Statement and Action Plan (RSAP) 2008-10
A review of the RSAP 2008-10 indicated a resounding 97% achievement rate against tasks with remedial 
steps identified to address gaps.  This success can be attributed to strong leadership and a core group of 
passionate individuals committed to addressing Reconciliation within the agency.

The RSAP 2011-14 outlines a three-year time line and will continue to evolve and develop due to actions 
being realised; performance indicators being met; an ongoing commitment to embrace equity and diversity; 
continual evaluation of the plan and two-way dialogue towards reconciliation being enriched over time.

Executive Aboriginal Governance and Working Group (EAGWG)
The EAGWG changed its name to the Executive Reconciliation Governance Working Group (ERGWG) 
due to there being no Executive Aboriginal participation in the group.  The new name better reflects the 
actual make-up and the focus of the group.

The ERGWG has continued to meet monthly with a strong and focussed participation.  The recent focus of 
the group has been to review the previous RSAP and produce a new one.  A number of the new  
initiatives contained within the RSAP focus on further improving relationships externally. 

The membership and terms of reference for the group were reviewed and finalised to reflect the PIRSA 
New Horizons restructure.

Strategy for Employment of People with Disabilities
PIRSA maintains a relationship with organisations that assist with the employment of people with  
disabilities.  PIRSA continues to access the candidate register of the Commonwealth Rehabilitation Service 
when suitable vacancies arise.
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Other Matters

Regional Impact Assessment Statements
No regional impact assessments were required in 2010-11. 



56

P I R S A  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 0 - 1 1



57

P I R S A  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 0 - 1 1

Occupational Health, Safety and  
Welfare and Injury Management

During the 2010-11 financial year PIRSA continued a vigorous process of reviewing its safety system including the 
review and further development of relevant procedures.

The Occupational Health Safety and Welfare (OHS&W) and Injury Management (IM) Peak Consultative Forum 
continues to provide employees with an avenue to address any safety concerns. The OHS&W and IM Governance 
Committee have provided clear direction to prioritise and enhance our safety activities.

PIRSA has developed and implemented a new internal audit program to check its level of compliance with its safety 
management system and to identify areas for improvement.

A new OHS&W and IM training program, ‘Making Safe Choices’ was developed and implemented in 2010 and consists 
of four modules:

1. Think Safe -  legislation, obligations and responsibilities 

2. Act Safe -  hazard and risk management

3. Move Save -  manual handling, ergonomics and injury prevention 

4. Be Safe - psychological wellbeing

The ‘Making Safe Choices’ program is mandatory for all staff and seeks to develop and enhance their knowledge and 
skills regarding health, safety and wellbeing in the workplace. 

A major new component of this program is the introduction of the psychological wellbeing module, consistent with 
Public Sector Safety and Wellbeing Strategy 2011-15 and the soon to be implemented Health in All Policies (HiAP).

PIRSA has also continued to promote the Healthyme@PIRSA program, designed to help address six key health/
lifestyle issues of day-to-day life. This program has been highly successful and received much interest and recognition 
from other government agencies.

A new Employee Assistance Program (EAP) was launched in January 2011. In addition to an employee confidential 
counselling service the program provides a new confidential telephone service for managers dealing with difficult or 
complex staff issues and a website with more than 850 wellbeing articles, self-assessment tools and online counselling.

PIRSA continues to perform well against the Safety and Wellbeing targets in the Public Sector Strategy 2010-15 with 
a slight increase in new claims and lost time injury frequency rates from last year. However, overall the results are 
significantly lower than the public sector average. This is a successful achievement given PIRSA’s high risk work  
environment. 
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Reporting against the Carer’s Recognition Act 2005

PIRSA is committed to recognising and supporting the role carers play in society, in particular, to our employees 
who have carer responsibilities.  To this end, PIRSA has developed a Carer’s Policy which is consistent with the 
Carer’s Recognition Act 2005.  

PIRSA’s Carer’s Policy provides commitment, recognition and the support of employees who provide ongoing 
care for a person who has a disability, a chronic illness including mental illness or who is frail and therefore 
requires ongoing assistance and care.

In addition to recognising and supporting those employees, the policy also recognises and supports employees 
who have parenting care roles and those who are required to provide occasional/short-term care. 

PIRSA has a Senior HR Consultant whose responsibility is to respond to carers issues across the department.
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Disability Action Plan

PIRSA recognises the rights of people with disabilities and promotes the recognition and acceptance within 
PIRSA of the principle that people with disabilities should have the same opportunities as other community 
members to access and participate in all facets of community life.

PIRSA has developed its third Disability Action Plan focusing on ongoing strategies within which outline the 
department’s response to the whole of Government Promoting Independence Strategy.  
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APPENDIX 1
PIRSA Ministerial Responsibilities
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1:
PIRSA Ministerial Responsibilities

The principal legislation, for which PIRSA has administrative responsibility in 2010-11, through the Minister for 
Agriculture, Food and Fisheries, the Minister for Forests and the Minister for Mineral Resources Development is 
listed below.  In some instances these Acts are supported by Regulations, Notices and Indentures or Directions.

Agriculture and Fisheries

Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (South Australia) Act 1994
Agricultural and Veterinary Products (Control of Use) Act 2002
Aquaculture Act 2001
Biological Control Act 1986
Brands Act 1933
Citrus Industry Act 2005
Fisheries Management Act 2007
Genetically Modified Crops Management Act 2004
Impounding Act 1920
Livestock Act 1997
Plant Health Act 2009
Phylloxera and Grape Industry Act 1995
Primary Industry Funding Schemes Act 1998
Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) Act 2004
Primary Producers Emergency Assistance Act 1967
Rural Industry Adjustment and Development Act 1985
South Australian Meat Corporation Act 1936
South Australian Meat Corporation (Sale of Assets) Act 1996
Veterinary Practice Act 2003
Wheat Marketing Act 1989
Wine Grapes Industry Act 1991

Environment and Conservation 

Dog Fence Act 1946 

Forests

Forest Property Act 2000
Local Government (Forestry Reserves) Act 1944
Penola Pulp Mill Authorisation Act 2007
Forestry Act 1950
South Australian Forestry Corporation Act 2000
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Mineral Resources development

Broken Hill Proprietary Company’s Indenture Act 1937
Cooper Basin (Ratification) Act 1975
Mines and Works Inspection Act 1920
Mining Act 1971
Natural Gas Authority Act 1967
Offshore Minerals Act 2000
Opal Mining Act 1995
Petroleum and Geothermal Energy Act 2000
Petroleum (Submerged Lands) Act 1982
Roxby Downs (Indenture Ratification) Act 1982
Santos Limited (Liquids Project) Ratification Act 1981
Stony Point (Liquids Project) Ratification Act 1981
Whyalla Steel Works Act 1958

Other acts

In addition, PIRSA has limited administrative functions under the following Acts that are committed to other  
Ministers. 

Development Act 1993
Disability Discrimination Act 1982
Environment Protection Act 1936
Environmental Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (Cwlth)
Equal Opportunity Act 1984
Explosives Act 1936
Fairwork Act 2009
Fire and Emergency Services Act 2005
Fisheries Act 1995 (Vic)
Fisheries Management Act 1994 (NSW)
Fisheries Management Act 1991 (Cwlth)
Fish Resources Management Act 1994 (WA)
Harbours and Navigation Act 1993
Historic Shipwrecks Act 1976 (Cwlth)
Historic Shipwrecks Act 1981
Marine Parks Act 2007
National Parks and Wildlife Act 1972
Native Vegetation Act 2003
Natural Resource Management Act 2004
Occupational Health and Welfare Act 1986
Petroleum Products Regulation Act 1995
Petroleum (Submerged Lands) Act 1967 (Cwlth)
Radiation and Protection and Control Act 1982
River Murrray Act 2003
Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Act 1986
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Legislative changes for 2010-11

Acts Repealed

Nil 

Acts whose repeal received assent from Parliament during 2010-11 but were not  
proclaimed by 30 June 2011.

Nil

Acts whose repeal received assent from Parliament during 2010-11 but were not  
proclaimed by 30 June 2011. 
Mining (Miscellaneous) Amendment Bill on 28 October 2010
Petroleum and Geothermal Energy Act 2000 on 18 November 2010

Bills introduced to Parliament in 2010-11 but not passed

Nil

Acts expired

Nil

Administered items:

PIRSA administers, but does not control, the following funds on behalf of the Commonwealth Government,  
Minister for Agriculture and Fisheries, Minister for Environment and Conservation, Minister for Forests and  
the Minister for Mineral Resources Development. These funds are not recorded in the agency’s operating  
statement or statement of financial position as the agency does not have any discretion to deploy the resources 
for achievement of its own objectives.

Adelaide Hills Wine Industry Fund
Apiary Industry Fund
Aquaculture Lease Rehabilitation Fund
Aquaculture Resource Management Fund
Barossa Wine Industry Fund
Cattle Industry Fund
Citrus Growers Fund
Clare Valley Wine Industry Fund
Deer Industry Fund
Egg Industry Deregulation Fund
Eyre Peninsula Grain Growers Rail Fund
Fisheries Research and Development Fund
Forestry SA Community Service Obligation
Grains Industry Levy
Langhorne Creek Wine Industry Fund
McLaren Vale Wine Industry Fund
Mining Royalties
Minister’s salary and allowances
Olive Industry Fund
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Pig Industry Fund
Riverland Wine Industry Fund
Rock Lobster Fishing Industry Fund
Royalties
SA Grape Growers Industry Fund
Samcor Fund Administration
Seed Levies Fund
Sheep Industry Fund

Authorities

Statutory

Statutory authorities associated with primary industries and resources and regional development and within the 
Ministers’ areas of responsibility are listed below. PIRSA provides relevant advice and assistance to these. 

Agriculture and Fisheries
Advisory Board of Agriculture
Aquaculture Advisory Committee
Aquaculture Tenure Allocation Board
Dairy Authority of South Australia
Fisheries Council of South Australia
Genetically Modified Crop Advisory Committee
Horticulture Industry Charges Panel
Industry Development Boards (Beef, Dairy, Horticulture, Pork and Sheep)
Meat Food Safety Advisory Committee
Phylloxera and Grape Industry Board of SA Selection Committee
Phylloxera and Grape Industry Board of South Australia
Pig and Poultry Production Institute Advisory Board
Rural Assistance Appeals Committee
Rural Solutions SA Board
SA Wine Industry Council
South Australian Alpaca Advisory Group
South Australian Apiary Industry Advisory Group
South Australian Cattle Advisory Group
South Australian Citrus Industry Development Board
South Australian Citrus Industry Development Board Selection Committee
South Australian Deer Advisory Group
South Australian Goat Advisory Group
South Australian Horse Industry Advisory Group
South Australian Pig Industry Advisory Group
South Australian Sheep Advisory Group
Veterinary Surgeons Board of South Australia
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Environment and Conservation
Branched Broomrape Community Focus Group
Central Local Dog Fence Board
Dog Fence Board
Fowlers Bay Dog Fence Board
Frome Local Dog Fence Board
Marree Local Dog Fence Board
Ministerial Advisory Committee on Branched Broomrape
Penong Local Dog Fence Board
Pureba Local Dog Fence Board

Mineral Resources Development
Board of Examiners for Mine Managers
Brukunga Mine Site Remediation Board
Extractive Areas Rehabilitation Fund Project Assessment Panel
Mintabie Consultative Committee
Resources Industry Development Board
Roxby Downs Advisory Reference Group

Other authorities
There are many non-statutory authorities on which PIRSA is represented. Significant bodies are discussed in the 
‘Performance review’ section, for example, Premier’s Food Council, South Australian Wine Industry Council, and 
the Advisory Board of Agriculture.
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APPENDIX 2
Occupational Health, Safety  

and Injury Management Statistics
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2:
Occupational Health, Safety  
and Injury Management Statistics

Table 1: OHS Notices and Corrective Action taken 

Table 2:  Agency gross’ workers compensation expenditure for 2010-11 compared  
with 2009-10

* before third party recovery

Number of notifiable occurrences pursuant to OHS&W Regulations Division 6.6

Number of notifiable injuries pursuant to OHS&W Regulations Division 6.6

Number of notices served pursuant to OHS&W Act Section 35, 39 and 40 
(default, improvement and prohibition notices)

EXPENDITURE

Income Maintenance

Lump Sum Settlements
Redemptions - Section 42

Lump Sum Settlements
Permanent Disability – Section 43

Medical/Hospital Costs combined

Other

Total Claims Expenditure*

2010-11 
($m)

0.09

0.06

0.04

0.14

0.04

0.37

2009-10 
($m)

0.16

0.06

0.15

0.25

0.06

0.69

Variation
 ($m) + (-)

-0.07

0.00

-0.11

-0.11

-0.02

-0.32

% Change
 + (-)

-44%

nil

-73%

-44%

-33%

-46%

3

1

0
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Table 3: Meeting Safety Performance Targets  

1.  Workplace Fatalities

2.  New Workplace Injury Claims

3.  New Workplace Injury Claims Frequency Rate

4.  Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate

5.  New Psychological Injury Claims

6.  Rehabilitation and Return to Work:

6a. Early Assessment within two days

6b. Early Intervention within five days

6c. RTW within five business days

7.  Claim Determination:

7a. Claim determined in 10 business days

7b. Claims still to be determined after three months

8. Income Maintenance Payments for Recent Injuries:

2009-10 Injuries (at 24 months development)

20010-11 Injuries (at 12 months development)

Number 

or %

0

31

13.49

5.66

0.86

77.42%

100.00%

66.67%

12.50%

80.65%

-

-

Base:  

2009-10
Final

Target (2011)

Performance: 12 months  

to end of June 2011

Actual

0

36

17.17

5.25

0.47

50.00%

100.00%

50.00%

25.00%

77.42%

$115 675.48

$49 244.25

Notional 

Qtrly Target

0

29

12.81

5.37

0.82

80.00%

90.00%

60.00%

10.00%

75.00%

$140 945.51

$88 754.23

Variation

0

7

4.35

-0.13

-0.36

--30.00%

10.00%

-10.00%

-75.00%

2.42%

-$25 270.03

-$39 509.98

Number  

or %

0

23

10.12

4.24

0.65

80.00%

90.00%

60.00%

100.00%

75.00$
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APPENDIX 3
Consultancies
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3:
Consultancies

Consultant    Summary of services

Core Energy Group Pty Ltd  Eastern Australia Gas Supply Study – Demand and Price Forecast

Douglas Haynes Discovery Pty Ltd Eastern Gawler / Lake Torrens Prospectivity Analysis

Earth Systems Consulting Pty Ltd Brukunga Treatment Plant Geochemical Investigation

Ferrier Hodgson   Advisory Services to the Minister Assisting the Premier with the  
     Olympic Dam Expansion Project

KAL Analysis Pty Ltd   Write-up workshop and provide relevant components of Phase one 
     report

Metago Environmental Engineers Mine Waste Management Consultancy Services: Review of ODX   
     Supplementary EIS Documentation

Monica Redden Consultancy  GSB Review Implementation Project

Monica Redden Consultancy  Consultancy services for the development and implementation of a  
     succession planning framework for the Minerals and Energy Resources  
     Division of PIRSA

Objective Corporation  Software Design and Verification

On Site Technology   Radium Hill / Port Pirie – Radiological services

Stillwell Management Consultants Recruitment of Director, Finance and Asset Management

Think One Team   PIRSA One Team Initiative

TZ Minerals International Pty Ltd Jacinth-Ambrosia Heavy Mineral Concentrate Fair Value Modelling

During 2010-11, 23 consultancies were engaged for a total expenditure of $786 773.  These are grouped as  
follows:

Consultancies below $10 000:
Eight consultancies costing below $10 000 were engaged for a total expenditure of $37 984.

Consultancies between $10 000 and $50 000:
13 consultancies costing between $10 000 and $50 000 were engaged for a total expenditure of $278 717.

The consulting firms that were engaged and a brief summary of the services for which they were engaged are 
listed in the table below:
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Consultant    Summary of services

The Nous Group   Organisational Review

Pricewaterhouse Coopers  Rural Solutions SA Organisational Review

Consultancies above $50 000:
Two consultancies costing above $50 000 were engaged for a total expenditure of $470 072.

The consulting firms that were engaged and a brief summary of the services for which they were engaged are 
listed in the table below:
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APPENDIX 4
Overseas Travel
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4:
Overseas Travel

Overseas travel by PIRSA employees for the period 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2011 is summarised below.   
In 2010–11, 121 overseas visits were made by PIRSA employees, for a total agency cost of $665 190. 

1

1

1 

1

1

1

1

1 PIRSA’s financial support for overseas visits varied from full payment (salary plus on-costs, fares, necessary living expenses, registration fees etc) 
to nil. In the latter instance there are generally two categories.  All costs, including salary, are either externally funded or the monies are recouped 
through charging consultancy fees. 

EMPLOYEES

Agriculture, Food, Wine and Forestry Division

Fisheries and Aquaculture Division

Biosecurity SA

$22 448

$10 161

$9 291

$41 900

$2 581

$6 159

$8 740

$8 338

$14 711

AGENCY COST1

China,  
Hong Kong 

China

Italy

French 
Polynesia 

Taiwan

Canada 

France

DESTINATION

Attended the Hong Kong International Wine and Spirits Fair to raise profile 
of SA as the leading Australian wine producer. 

SA Government case management for the commercial investment service 
sector pilot initiative to promote SA’s food and wine sectors. Coordinated 
by PIRSA, other agencies and hosted by the Minister of Agriculture and 
Fisheries. 

Participated as a representative in the Australian delegation at the United 
Nations Food and Agriculture Organization Ministerial Conference.  
The delegation was led by Minister Ludwig, senior Commonwealth  
Departmental officials and the Minister Counsellor based in Rome.

 Subtotal

Participated in the Tahiti Aquaculture 2010 seminar & workshop. Presented a case 
study for Tropical Islands titled “Aquaculture Governance in South Australia”. 

Attended the extended commission of the 17th Annual Meeting of the  
Commission for the Conservation of Southern Bluefin Tuna (CCSBT). 

Subtotal

Attended the International Conference on Molluscan Shellfish Safety which 
provided a scientific forum for shellfish experts and program leaders/managers 
to discuss and review developments in molluscan shellfish safety.

Attended the International Conference on Animal Health Surveillance to develop 
solutions for future surveillance approaches fulfils the needs of both policy and 
science. Participated in the Australian Delegation at the International Committee 
of the World Organisation for Animal Health 79th General Session.

PURPOSE
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1

1

3

1

1

1

1

2

3

1

EMPLOYEES

Biosecurity SA

Investment and Innovation Division

Minerals and Energy Division: Minerals

$1 940

$7 284

$32 273

$17 161

$17 161

$19 097

$10 400

$7 617

$6 571

$17 629

$45 710

$24 902

AGENCY COST1

Hong Kong 

United 
States of 
America

China 

Argentina 
Chile 

Canada

Canada

Canada

Canada

Canada

Canada 
& United 
Kingdom

DESTINATION

Attended the 2010 Poultry Technical Conference covering the latest information 
and diagnostic techniques of disease control in poultry, food safety, Salmonella 
and Campylobacter control and prevention.

Attended and presented paper on “How to Destroy Over 100 000 Wild Pacific 
Oysters in One Day: Research and Experiences from a Successful control Exercise of  
25 km of infested intertidal Reef in South Australia” at the 17th International 
Conference on Aquatic Invasive Species.  

 Subtotal

Coordinated an SA food and wine promotion hosted by Minister for Agriculture 
and Fisheries. Participated in meeting with service sector companies who had 
briefings with investors.

 Subtotal

Presented a technical paper at the Clean-Mining Conference 2011 on  
“Best Practice Regulation of Mining in South Australia,  Australia”. 

Presented a paper at the Uranium 2010 Symposium. Attended by invitation the 
45th Joint International Atomic Energy Agency – Organisation for Economic  
Cooperation and Development Uranium group meeting and visited the  
Geological Survey of Saskatchewan.

Presented a keynote talk at the Uranium Session of the Saskatchewan Geological 
Survey Annual Conference.

Completed final technical one-on-one phase of the geoscientific collaboration 
relating to increased uranium potential in South Australia and Saskatchewan.

Attended and exhibited at the Mineral Exploration Roundup to promote the new 
PACE 2020 initiative to an international audience.

Represented SA in Team Australia at the Prospectors and Developers Association 
of Canada International Convention, Trade Show and Investors Exchange. 

Delivered a key note address at the SA Resources Dinner and participated at the 
Prospectors and Developers Association of Canada International Convention, 
Trade Show and Investors Exchange. Met with representative of the South  
Australian Agent General’s office in London.

PURPOSE
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1

1

7

1

2

1

1

1

2

3

EMPLOYEES

Minerals and Energy Division: Minerals

Minerals and Energy Division: Petroleum

$4 550

$10 212

$69 996 

$10 500

$18 966

$6 838

$7 617

$4 478

$15 040 

$21 412

AGENCY COST1

China

China

China

Georgia 
Uzbekistan

Iceland

India

Japan 
& South 
Korea

Canada

France

US

DESTINATION

International collaboration between PIRSA and Beijing Research Institute of 
Uranium Geology (BRIUG) of the China National Nuclear Corporation (CNNC) 
and the International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA). Met with the Exploration 
Team 243 of CNNC.

Spoke on behalf of the Australian delegation on two topics of interest to South 
Australia: Base Metals and Uranium and Thorium. 

Attended the China Mining 2010 Conference and participated in the Australian 
Seminar hosted by Team Australia. Attended official Sister Ports Memorandum of 
Understanding signing ceremony between Flinders Ports and Xiamen Ports.

Invited to deliver a course on Uranium Geology & Exploration Techniques to  
researchers, students and officials at Uzbek University, Uzbekistan.  Also  
presented similar workshop in Georgia.

Attended workshop focused on risk management for Engineered Geothermal 
System operations that can create induced seismicity. Met with International  
Energy Agency Geothermal Implementing Agreeing research annex. Visited 
Icelandic geothermal plants to better understand geothermal energy generation 
operation.

Showcasing of the South Australian Mining Supplier and Investment Trade  
Mission, held in association with the International Mines and Machinery  
Exhibition and the Global Mining Summit. Promoted investment opportunities in 
exploration and resources technology and services, as well as trade and business 
migration opportunities.

Part of Team Australia in the Resources Investment delegation coordinated by 
Geoscience Australia. Provided information to potential explorers and investors 
on SA’s expanding mining sector.

Attended the Canadian Oil Sands Energy Dialogue Workshop to showcase SA’s 
regulatory framework. Also promoted exploration investment opportunities.

Attended the International Partnership for Geothermal Technology Induced  
Seismicity Working Group meetings and the International Energy Agency  
Executive Committee meetings.

Attended Geothermal Resources Council Conference presenting three papers. 
Promoted SA’s investment opportunities in the Team Australia booth in  
conjunction with the Geothermal Resource Council Conference. 

PURPOSE
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1

1

1

1 

1

2

2

1

1

1

EMPLOYEES

Minerals and Energy Division: Petroleum

Rural Solutions SA

$6 886

$9 534

$24 200

$2 880

$7 057

$16 065

$20 185

$10 641

$398 983

Nil

$3 539

AGENCY COST1

Germany 
& US

Iceland

Iceland
Mexico 
& US

Norway

US

US

US

US

Dubai
Jordan 
& Syria

Egypt

DESTINATION

Attended the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change meeting. Represented 
SA at the 36th Stanford Geothermal Conference. Presented two papers on  
geothermal research. Attended a Geothermal Research Council Board Meeting.

Attended workshop focused on risk management for Engineered Geothermal 
System operations that can create induced seismicity. Met with International  
Energy Agency Geothermal Implementing Agreeing research annex. Visited 
Icelandic geothermal plants to better understand geothermal energy generation 
operation.

Attended workshop focused on risk management for Engineered Geothermal 
System operations that can create induced seismicity. Visited Icelandic  
geothermal plants to better understand geothermal energy generation  
operations. Met with United States Departments of Energy for geothermal  
and the Interior for regulating upstream petroleum operations.

Invited to and attended the Norwegian Centre for Geothermal Energy Research 
Conference, gave a seminar presentation.

Represented SA at the 36th Stanford Geothermal Conference. Presented paper 
on geothermal research.

Attended the American Association of Petroleum Geologists Conference  
Enhanced Geothermal Systems. Presented papers and participated in specialised 
discussions.

Attended the North American Petroleum Exposition (NAPE). Represented SA  
at the 36th Stanford Geothermal Conference. Presented three papers on  
geothermal research. Attended the Geothermal Research Council Board Meeting.

Attended the American Association of Petroleum Geologists Annual Convention. 
Presented a paper and poster and promoted SA. Attended a pre and post  
conference short courses and field trips.

 Subtotal

Made recommendations for AusAID commissioned On The Ground agricultural 
development. Facilitated a range of short course agricultural training  
opportunities in Jordan. Met with Saudi Arabian Ministry of Agriculture about 
development of sheep industry.

Contracted to consult in an Australian Centre for International Agricultural 
Research project relating to management and delivery of a short course training 
program on agricultural extension to industry professionals.

PURPOSE



77

P I R S A  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 0 - 1 1

1

1

1

1 

3

2

2

2

1

1

EMPLOYEES

Rural Solutions SA

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

$10 000

AGENCY COST1

Egypt

Egypt
Morocco & 
Tunisia

Eritrea

Fiji

India

India

Jordan

Jordan

Jordan
Syria & 
United Arab 
Emirates

Kazakhstan 
& Russia

DESTINATION

Delivered key elements of an extension training program funded by the  
Australian Centre for International Agricultural Research and initiated an  
irrigation and water management knowledge and information exchange,  
developing links for long term collaboration.

Attended by invitation in a mission to develop a Regional Conservation  
Agriculture Training and Development Hub in northern Africa. Included field 
visits to existing research and extension organisations and facilities, met with 
Government officials and debriefed with the Australian High Commissioner.

Contracted to undertake project consultancy with the Australian Government 
Department of Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry, International Market Access 
Branch. Giving strategic planning and training advice towards the development  
of an Agricultural College.

Delivered one part of a four-year consultancy with the Australian Centre for 
International Agriculture Research (ACIAR) project with Pacific Island partner 
countries underpinning development of more competitive high-value agriculture, 
fisheries and forestry products, based on strengthening the market chains.

Regular four-monthly attendance of scheduled research project about wheat 
quality improvement and market chain development.

Contracted to undertake project consultancy at the Australian Centre for  
International Agricultural Research, in a project relating to evaluation of Happy 
Seeder crop sowing equipment.

Delivered a World Bank funded 12-day training program for key personnel from 
the Iraqi Ministry of Water Resources Engineers on Irrigated Water Resources 
Management.

Attended project planning meetings for the AusAID contract for two On The 
Ground projects. Focussing on the development of artificial sheep breeding  
centres and the demonstration of improved irrigation efficiencies.

Delivered recommendations from AusAID commissioned On The Ground  
agricultural development program. Objectives were to improve irrigation  
application techniques and management under saline conditions, farmer  
participatory driven research, development and extension programs. 

Met with commercial investors to progress scoping and feasibility studies to 
establish beef cattle breeding enterprises. Consolidated the joint Memorandum 
of Understanding between Kazakhstan and PIRSA.

PURPOSE
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1

1

1

1 

1

3

1

1

EMPLOYEES

Rural Solutions SA

South Australian Research and Development Institute (SARDI): Aquatic Sciences

$3 820

$6 825

Nil

Nil

$2 670

$26 854

Nil

$10 609

Nil

AGENCY COST1

Malaysia

Saudi Arabia

Solomon 
Islands

Syria
United Arab 
Emirates

US

China

Germany 
& US

Ireland

DESTINATION

Attended the International Agricultural extension Conference AGREX 10 and 
presented a paper on “Supporting young agricultural professionals in 
organisations in developed and developing countries”.

Invited to address the Agricultural Development Fund Committee on the  
proposed feasibility study to establish an entity for production, breeding,  
improvement and marketing of sheep.

Consultancy agreement for Australian Centre for International Agriculture 
Research project duration of four years. Project to improve the livelihoods of 
people in the Pacific Island partner countries by developing competitive high-
value agriculture, fisheries and forestry products based on strengthening the 
market chains.

Delivered recommendations from AusAID commissioned On The Ground  
agricultural development program. Objectives were to improve sheep  
reproduction technology skill, support the enhanced development of up to 
four reproduction centres, encourage and facilitate trained staff to offer further 
training and provide strategies for Iraqi Ministry staff to work with and engage 
farmers and farmers groups.

Investigated the latest developments in orchard mechanisations in the United 
States. Project funded by Horticulture Australia Ltd and the Apple & Pears  
Australia Ltd to investigate a range of high-density apple orchard systems and 
their economic performance under Australian conditions. 

 Subtotal

Part of contractual requirement for the Fisheries Research and Development 
Corporation project Feasibility study for Integrated Multitripic Aquaculture in 
southern Australia.  First hand experience of farming of seaweeds alongside  
marine finfish (tuna and yellowtail kingfish). 

Observed a system that extracts oil from microalgal biomass, by the operation 
and working of a new novel oil extraction technique and inspected the operation 
of a small pilot biodiesel plant to produce 10-20 litres of biodiesel.

Attended the international Conference Fishery Dependent Information  
Conference: Making the Most of Fisheries Information Underpinning Policy, 
Management and Science. Met with Inshore Fisheries Scientists from the national 
University of Ireland and the National Marine Fisheries Management Institute.

PURPOSE
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1

1

1

1 

1

1

1

1

1

1

EMPLOYEES

SARDI: Aquatic Sciences

Nil

$1 328

Nil

$2 000

$6 500

$6 935

Nil

$1 944

$10 470

$1 100

AGENCY COST1

Indonesia

Japan

Norway

Thailand & 
Singapore

US

US

US

US

US

US

DESTINATION

Compiled project results to complete final project report. Supported project  
officers in planning accumulated spawned yellowfin tuna broodstock with  
refinements to system operation and developed protocols to maintain water 
quality, addressing possible parasite infections. 

Attended the Ecological Society of Japan Conference and presented a paper on 
the future of community ecology (marine). Had discussions with research  
directors and scientists.

Attended the 9th International Conference and Workshop on Lobster Biology 
and Management. Presented a paper and chaired a session of presentations.

Attended the World Seagrass Conference. Delivered a paper on seagrass 
rehabilitation techniques being developed in SA. Further discussion will lead to 
results in either reduced costs and/or increased effectiveness of any larger scale 
rehabilitation initiative.

Attended the Gordon conference on the Metabolic Basis of Ecology.  
Collaborated with researchers and developed an ecological modelling method 
to quantify the energetic trophic transport of biomass up pelagic food chains. 
Compared this with estimates for pelagic and terrestrial environments. 

Attended the 17th International Conference on Aquatic Invasive Species. This 
conference examined marine bio-invasion vectors, patterns, distribution,  
ecological and evolutionary consequences, economic impacts, biosecurity  
approaches, and invasion impacts on biodiversity. Discussed an innovative new 
initiative on pest surveillance.

Site inspections of Columbia River Basin Passive irrigated Transponder tag reader 
systems and tagging operations. Met with fisheries biologists and software/field 
systems engineers from the Pacific States Marine Fisheries Commission and  
suppliers of the DIDSON dual frequency high definition sonar.

Attended the Society of Marine Mammalogy Annual Board Meeting as an elected 
member. Position to be held for four years (2010-14).

Attended the Tri-national Sardine Forum. Discussed stock assessment research 
and role of sardine in ecosystem for North West Pacific Sardine stock.  
Presented a paper.

Participated in a World Bank International Workshop on Improving the Economic 
Performance of Fisheries. Presented a paper on “Economic performance of 
Australia’s prawn fisheries”. Conducted a workshop with economists.

PURPOSE
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1

1

1

1 

1

1

1

1

1

1

EMPLOYEES

SARDI: Innovative Food and Plants

SARDI: Livestock and Farming Systems

$4 263

Nil

$3 210

$1 410

$1 974

$11 199

$3 546

$3 500

Nil

Nil

AGENCY COST1

Canada

China

Czech  
Republic

Japan

South Africa

Sweden

Uganda

UK

China

China

DESTINATION

Attended the International Conference on Molluscan Shellfish Safety gave two 
presentations on Market Access for Abalone and information on Australia hosting 
the 10th International Conference in 2013. Met and discussed new technologies 
for detection of shellfish toxins.

Australian Seafood Cooperative Research Centre funded Project Research,  
Develop and Trial New Australian Wild Caught Abalone Products in China.  
Evaluated current products, supplies and issues with distributors and customers 
to gain feedback on quality, packaging and ideas for new products.

Attended the 13th International Rapeseed Congress. Presented paper  
“Development of Brassica juncea as a biodiesel feedstock in low rainfall areas of  
Australia”.

Attended the Food Science Forum and presented paper “Results from research 
into the use of oat flour in noodle production”.

Attended the International Union of Food Science & Technology World Congress. 
Information covered new product development and general food technology.

Attended the European Oat Conference. Visited Goleborg University to view 
and discuss research conducted in the Molecular Genetics Research Group.  
Presented two e-concept proposals on water use efficiency in oats with  
favourable feedback and research conducted by the University.

Attended and provided specialist technical support to the Australian Delegation 
at the Codex Committee on Food Hygiene Plenary Meeting. Focused on input 
into the development of the Code of Hygienic Practice for control of Viruses in 
Food.

Attended the 4th International Barley Leaf Blights Workshop. Presented two 
papers and toured research and agricultural systems.

Evaluated success of an Australian Centre for International Agricultural Research 
(ACIAR) 2007 project Lucerne adapted to adverse environments in China and 
Australia. 

Participated in bilateral workshop New Crops and Planting Systems for the  
Sustainable Use and Management of Salt-Affected Lands in China and Australia. 
Shared knowledge and technology to assist future technical cooperation.

PURPOSE
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2

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

2

EMPLOYEES

SARDI: Livestock and Farming Systems

SARDI: Sustainable Systems

$3 248

Nil

Nil

$2 158

$2 840

$4 646

$3 568

$5 500

Nil

$4 590

AGENCY COST1

East Timor

Indonesia

Indonesia

Malaysia

Argentina

China

Indonesia

China

Italy

Netherlands 
& Spain

DESTINATION

Mentored an agriculture technical assistant at the Ministry of Agriculture and 
Fisheries in Dili. Progressive assessment of candidate to final assessment on  
demonstration site, feedlot trial, training on site and in SA.

Attended a workshop on Pig Production in Eastern Indonesia at the University  
of Udayana. Presented a paper on “Using local ingredients for small scale 
manufacture of pig feed”. To develop options in Indonesia to diversify the 
smallholder production systems to take advantage of the increased range and 
quantity of feeds available.

Met with scientists involved in the pig sweet potato poultry program to inspect 
demonstration sites and attended the annual project review committee.

Participated in an international collaborative effort aimed at helping to preserve 
the acutely threatened Borneo Sumatran rhinoceros through assisted  
reproduction techniques. 

Was part of a project evaluation committee with scientists from Spain, Chile and 
US to review collaborative projects on; Maise adaption to drought and shallow 
soils; Phenotypic changes associated with breeding for yield; Heritability of yield 
components in cereals; Nitrogen use efficiency of wheat in Mediterranean  
environments.

Was part of a four person science delegation aiming to establish long-term  
research collaborations between Australian and Chinese research institutions  
to advance market access, Biosecurity and pest management in viticulture.

Attended master class on surveillance, identification and management of citrus 
diseases – huanglongbing  to reduce its impact on commercial citrus production 
and threatened germplasm.

Attended workshop hosted by the Institute of Environment and Sustainable  
Development in Agriculture, Chinese Academy of Agricultural Sciences, in  
Beijing. Topic of discussion was the temperature-driven mismatch between crop 
development and rainfall. 

Attended the 8th International Workshop on Sap flow and presented papers, one 
on “Nocturnal Sap flow of field grown Almond trees and their response to water stress” 
and the other on “Plant structure and water relations”. 

Led an industry tour of greenhouse production enterprises in the Netherlands 
and Spain as part of contractual agreement with Horticulture Australia Limited 
for project researching production and disease management issues for the  
horticultural greenhouse industry.

PURPOSE
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1

1
 

1

1

1

1

1

2

1

EMPLOYEES

SARDI: Sustainable Systems

$7 138

$4 478

$6 482

$2 146

$2 986

$5 500

$2 941

$11 070

Nil

$139 279

$665 190

AGENCY COST1

UK

Portugal

France
Germany &
US

Thailand

UK

US

US

US

US

DESTINATION

Attended 12th International Symposium on the interactions between sediments 
and water within and between terrestrial, freshwater and marine ecosystems.

Attended the 28th International Horticulture Congress and presented an invited 
lecture as a keynote speaker at the Olive Symposium. Attended an associated 
horticulture workshop following on from the Conference

Attended international workshop on grapevine downy and powdery mildews.  
Discussed new fungicide development and strategies to manage fungicide  
resistance with Bayer personnel. Inspected vineyard trials on disease  
management in Europe and grape vine trials in America.

Attended 6th International Workshop on Diamondback Moth and other  
Crucifer Pests of Brassica vegetable and canola crops. Went to forum for 
research exchange on crucifer pest ecology, biological control, pesticides and 
integrated pest management.

Liaised with collaborate researchers at the Scottish Agricultural College, which 
demonstrated that foliar application of polymers extracted from cereal bran  
have reduced infection of barley by leaf scald and brown rust.

Attended a joint scientific meeting Green Revolutions s.2.0: Food + Energy and 
Environmental Security of the American Society of Agronomy and the American 
Societies of Soil Science and Crop Science. Invited to present a new model of 
crop yield determination. “A Reappraisal of Potential Grain Yield Determination 
from Convergent Physiological and Evolutionary Perspectives”.

Presented first paper on “Distribution of Rhizoctonia throughout the cropping region 
of Australia” and second paper on “Disease caused by Rhizoctonia in Australian 
cereals” at the 2011 Global Root Health Forum.

Visited research centres and viewed research into growth-stunting soil-borne 
disease threatening the sustainability on the Onion industry.

Lecture presentation of research findings on nutrient transport and mitigation  
in the Mount Lofty Ranges at the Total Maximum Daily Loads 2010 Water 
Management to Improve Water Quality Conference organised by the American 
Society of Agricultural and Biological Engineers.

 Subtotal

 TOTAL

PURPOSE
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APPENDIX 5
Freedom of Information
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5:
Freedom of Information

PIRSA publishes a FOI Statement under Section 9 of the Freedom of Information Act 1991 on its website.  It is available 
at:  http://www.pir.sa.gov.au/pirsa/about_pirsa/pirsas_strategic_directions/governance/freedom_of_information
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APPENDIX 6
Statement of Aboriginal Reconciliation
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6:
Statement of Aboriginal Reconciliation

PIRSA acknowledges Aboriginal peoples’ connections to Land and Sea Country, which has been strengthened over tens 
of thousands of years.  We respect Aboriginal peoples’ heritage, cultures and connection to Country and acknowledge 
the ongoing impact of colonisation.  PIRSA also recognises the resilience of Aboriginal peoples and supports  
communities’ aspirations for a positive future.  

PIRSA is an inclusive workplace and strives for a high level of cultural competency, so that our relationships with  
Aboriginal people and organisations are considerate and sustainable, and our services are responsive and equitable.

PIRSA is committed to Reconciliation Australia’s key themes of relationships, respect and opportunities, which are 
embedded in our Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP) vision.  

PIRSA’s Reconciliation vision of walking together, strengthening cultural competency and investing in positive futures, 
places value on the following:

• Walking Together to provide opportunities for respectful engagement, building on relationships and 
 strengthening our capacity to work collaboratively with Aboriginal people.  In addition to strengthening  
 relationships with Aboriginal people, communities and organisations, we will work collaboratively with industry  
 and other government departments.

• Strengthening Cultural Competency to actively cultivate work environments and services which are
 respectful and inclusive of Aboriginal people. This will be achieved through demonstrating respect for Aboriginal 
 people and their heritage, and acknowledging the diversity within Aboriginal cultures and communities. 

• Investing in Positive Futures to promote opportunities which support Aboriginal people to achieve their
 aspirations of sustainable solutions within primary industries. PIRSA will continue to support initiatives that 
 increase industry and community participation in opportunities which support Aboriginal people, communities  
 and organisations to achieve their aspirations for sustainable solutions.

Under PIRSA’s New Horizons approach to integrating operating systems across the agency, the structure and delivery 
of initiatives and activities is supported by a representative group from each division, meeting monthly to address and 
coordinate Aboriginal initiatives. 

• The Executive Reconciliation Governance Working Group report and identify gaps and opportunities for  
 PIRSA and Aboriginal interest, report and coordinate responses accordingly. 

• Within our approach the Aboriginal Employees Network is being supported to become active and involved  
 to address issues and lead proactively for our future as an agency. 

• Externally PIRSA is undertaking to establish an Aboriginal Futures group to assist in developing an enduring  
 group who will liaise with PIRSA executive to address and advance economic participation across primary  
 industries sectors into the future. 

PIRSA understands and respects that the Aboriginal interests in South Australia are significant and important to our  
future as an agency of the SA Government. We are focused on working with state and commonwealth agencies and 
their initiatives to support Reconciliation and economic participation through initiatives such as; 
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1. Cultural Inclusion Framework for South Australia

2. SA Public Sector Aboriginal Employment Strategy

3. South Australia’s State Strategic Plan 

4. Commonwealth Government’s Closing the Gap

PIRSA encourages and supports all staff to understand and respect the importance of our approach to engagement, 
respecting, understanding and working with Aboriginal people in SA. We strive to achieve this by adopting practical 
approaches to ensure that results are sustainable, culturally sensitive and socially just.  In collaboration with Aboriginal 
people, we aim to engender tangible change for Aboriginal peoples and communities within SA.
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APPENDIX 7
Contacts
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7:
Contacts

Primary Industries and Resources South Australia
Level 17, Grenfell Centre, 25 Grenfell St, Adelaide 
GPO Box 1671, Adelaide SA 5001

Receptions:  L14, 25 Grenfell St, Adelaide. Phone (08) 8226 0900
  L17 101 Grenfell St, Adelaide. Phone (08) 8463 3000 
  Fax (08) 8226 0027

Website: http://www.pir.sa.gov.au

PIRSA has about 30 offices across regional South Australia and the Adelaide metropolitan area. Contact details are on 
PIRSA’s website and in telephone directories. At 30 June 2011:

ENQUIRY

Minister for Agriculture, Fisheries
Minister for Forests
Minister for Energy

Minister for Mineral Resources  
Development

Minister Assisting the Premier  
with the Olympic Dam  
Expansion Project

Minister for Food Marketing

Minister for Environment  
and Conservation 

Chief Executive

Group Executive Director
Portfolio Services 

Group Executive Director
Primary Industries and Biosecurity

PHONE, FAX AND LOCATIONS

P: (08) 8226 0322 F: (08) 8226 0316
Level 17, Grenfell Centre,  
25 Grenfell St,  Adelaide

P: (08) 8463 6560 F: (08) 8204 1960
Level 8, Terrace Towers,  
178 North Tce,  Adelaide

P: (08) 8303 2101 F: (08) 8303 2042
Level 9, Terrace Towers,  
178 North Tce,  Adelaide

P:  (08) 8207 1723 F: (08) 8207 1736
Level 11,  
45 Pirie St Adelaide

P: (08) 8463 5680 F: (08) 8463 5681
Level 9, Chesser House,  
91-97 Grenfell St,  Adelaide 

P: (08) 8226 0162 F: (08) 8226 0320
Level 17, Grenfell Centre,  
25 Grenfell St,  Adelaide

P: (08) 8226 0466 F: (08) 8226 0221
Level 17, Grenfell Centre,  
25 Grenfell St,  Adelaide

P:  (08) 8226 0204 F: (08) 8463 3363
Level 17, Grenfell Centre, 2 
5 Grenfell St,  Adelaide 

CONTACT

Michael O’Brien MP

Tom Koutsantonis MP

Kevin Foley MP

John Rau MP

Paul Caica MP

Geoff Knight
Chief Executive

Steve Archer
Deputy Chief Executive

Don Plowman
Deputy Chief Executive
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ENQUIRY

Group Executive Director
Strategy, Policy and People

Chief Executive, Olympic Dam  
Taskforce Group Executive Director
Minerals and Energy Resources

Fisheries and Aquaculture

Investment and Strategic Projects

Biosecurity SA

Minerals and Energy Resources

Petroleum and Geothermal

Agriculture, Food, Wine  
and Forestry

Rural Solutions SA

South Australian Research and  
Development Institute (SARDI)

PHONE, FAX AND LOCATIONS

P: (08) 8226 0231 F: (08) 8226 0978
Level 17, Grenfell Centre,  
25 Grenfell St,  Adelaide

P: (08) 8463 4153 F: (08) 8463 4155
Level 7,  
101 Grenfell St,  Adelaide

P: (08) 8226 3994 F: (08) 8226 0060
Level 14, Grenfell Centre,  
25 Grenfell St,  Adelaide

P: (08) 8226 0056 F: (08) 8226 0060
Level 16, Grenfell Centre, 2 
5 Grenfell St,  Adelaide

P: (08) 8207 7943 F:  (08) 8207 7852
Level 2,  
33 Flemington St, Glenside

P:  (08) 8463 3033 F:  (08) 8463 4155
Level 7,  
101 Grenfell St, Adelaide

P: (08) 8463 3200 F: (08) 8463 3229
Level 6,  
101 Grenfell St, Adelaide

P: (08) 8463 6139 F: (08) 8124 4578
Level 9,  
101 Grenfell St, Adelaide 

P: (08) 8226 2346 F: (08) 8463 3336
Level 8,  
101 Grenfell St, Adelaide

P: (08) 8303 9398 F: (08) 8303 9403
Plant Research Centre, Gate 2B,  
Hartley Grove, Urrbrae

CONTACT

Erma Ranieri
Executive Director

Paul Heithersay
Deputy Chief Executive 

Mehdi Doroudi
Executive Director

Steve Ward
Executive Director

Will Zacharin
Executive Director

Ted Tyne
Executive Director

Barry Goldstein 
Executive Director

Stuart West
Executive Director

Rod Miller
Acting Executive Director
         

Pauline Mooney
Executive Director
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APPENDIX 8
Financial Overview and Financial Statements

Primary Industries and Resources South Australia
Rural Industry Adjustment and Development Fund
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APPENDIX 8
Financial Overview and Financial Statements

Primary Industries and Resources South Australia
Rural Industry Adjustment and Development Fund

Olympic Dam Task Force
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8:
Financial Overview

The tables below summarise the statement of comprehensive income, statement of financial position and statement of 
cash flows of the Department for the year ended 30 June 2011. The results are compared with the 2010-11 budget and 
the results for the previous year. The full detailed financial statements and notes to the accounts of the Department are 
presented in Appendix 8.

Statement of Comprehensive Income

The table above shows that for the financial year ending 30 June 2011, PIRSA’s net result was an operating deficit of $3.7 
million which was $0.5 million favourable compared to budget. The variance to budget largely reflects movements in the 
large once off projects being managed by PIRSA.

Major variations included:
Total expenses in 2010-11 were $10.6 million lower than budget primarily as a result of drought related issues, lower 
than expected cost of plague locust and fruit fly responses, and lower demand for partnered research activity.

Total income was $7.3 million lower than budgeted primarily as a result of reduced revenue for partnered research 
activities and reduced Commonwealth revenue for Exceptional Circumstances drought relief funding due to lower than 
expected demand.

Expenses

Income

Net cost of  
providing services

Revenues from  
SA Government

Payments to  
SA Government

Net result Surplus/
(Deficit)

Total comprehensive 
result

2010-11
Budget
$000’s(a)

255 484

123 352

132 132

132 670

(4 690)

(4 152)

(4 152)

2010-11
Actual
$000’s

244 849

116 031

128 818

129 816

(4 690)

(3 692)

(3 692)

2009-10
Actual

$000’s (b)

 
314 017

239 320

74 697

137 100

(61 924)

479

479

(a) The 2010-11 budget figures have been adjusted from the figures published in the 2011-12 Agency Statements as a result of 
post budget approvals. 
(b) The 2009-10 actual figures have been revised relative to those published in the 2009-10 Annual report due to the 
recognition of prior period adjustments. 
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Total income in 2010-11 decreased by $123.3 million from 2009-10 and this was principally due to reduced recoveries 
given the timing of the Jervois to Langhorne and Currency Creek irrigation pipeline project. Exceptional Circumstances 
drought relief funding from the Commonwealth was lower, following a reduction in the number of declared areas and 
the timing of the uptake of the scheme. There was also a lower reimbursement for once off payments associated with 
the targeted voluntary separation scheme. 

Total expenses in 2010-11 were $69.2 million lower than in 2009–10 primarily as a result of lower grant and subsidy 
payments associated with the Exceptional Circumstances drought relief program. The expenditure to finalise the Jervois 
to Langhorne Creek and Currency Creek irrigation pipeline was significantly less than incurred in the previous year 
due to the timing of the project. There was also a reduction in once off payments associated with the targeted  
voluntary separation scheme. Partially offsetting these reductions was once off expenditure for the plague locust  
control program.

Statement of Financial Position

Current assets were $14.8 million higher than budget primarily as a result of an increase in cash held including 
cash received from the Department of Trade and Economic Development in relation to the transfer of the Olympic 
Dam Taskforce to PIRSA.

Non current assets were $2.3 million below budget primarily due to a net reduction in asset values relating to an 
accounting policy change in the asset capitalisation threshold during 2010-11 from $2 000 to $10 000.

Total liabilities were $11.7 million above budget primarily from additional unearned income, payables and accruals 
recognised at year end, and increases in employee entitlement and workers compensation provisions, primarily 
from the lowering of the government benchmark for recognition of long service leave from 5.5 years to 5.0 years.

Current Assets

Non Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Non Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

2010-11
Budget
$000’s(a)

101 265

141 386

242 651

38 258

28 888

67 146

175 505

2010-11
Actual
$000’s

116 017

139 079

255 096

45 046

33 791

78 837

176 259

2009-10
Actual

$000’s (b)

 
107 630

141 349

248 979

36 957

28 554

65 511

183 468

(a) The 2010-11 budget figures have been adjusted from the figures published in the 2011-12 Agency Statements as a result of 
post budget approvals.  
(b) The 2009-10 actual figures have been revised relative to those published in the 2009-10 Annual report due to the 
recognition of prior period adjustments. 
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Statement of Cash Flows

The net cash flow from operating activities was $22.7 million higher than budget mainly reflecting changes in the 
timing and scale of revenues and expenditure associated with the Exceptional Circumstances drought relief  
program, SARDI partnered research activities and the lower than expected cost of plague locust and fruit fly 
response programs. In addition there were large value accruals of revenue and expenditure at the end of 2009-10 
that were converted to cash during 2010-11. 

Receipts from investing and financing activities were $0.7 million above budget, mainly due to greater borrowings 
from the Department of Treasury and Finance to facilitate loans to cooperatives. Restructuring activities resulted 
in $1.0 million cash received mainly from the Department of Trade and Economic Development in relation to the 
transfer of the Olympic Dam Taskforce to PIRSA.

Cash flows from  
operating activities

Payments

Receipts

Net cash flows from  
Government

Net cash provided by  
operating activities

Cash flows from investing  
and financing activities

Payments

Receipts

Restructuring activities

Net cash used in investing 
and financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) 
in cash held

Cash at 1 July

Cash at 30 June

2010-11
Budget
$000’s(a)

(249 390)

126 232

124 994

1 836

(17 331)

5 702

-

(11 629)

(9 793)

77 799

68 006

2010-11
Actual
$000’s

(247 704)

147 149

125 126

24 571

(11 548)

6 438

1 001

(4 109)

20 462

77 736

98 198

2009-10
Actual

$000’s (b)

 

(328 857)

255 580

75 176

1 899

(6 551)

1 391

-

(5 160)

(3 261)

80 997

77 736

(a) The 2010-11 budget figures have been adjusted from the figures published in the 2011-12 Agency Statements as a result of post 
budget approvals.  
(b) The 2009-10 actual figures have been revised relative to those published in the 2009-10 Annual report due to the recognition of 
prior period adjustments. 
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Payments for investing and financing activities were $5.8 million lower than budget largely due to variations in the 
timing of expenditure of major projects including the Photobioreactor and Integrated Marine Observation System 
under the National Collaborative Research Infrastructure Strategy (NCRIS). There was also lower cost in relation 
to the Fisheries accommodation relocation project.

Property, Plant and Equipment Assets
PIRSA owns and manages property, plant and equipment assets valued at $126.7 million, including a number of 
large research centres across the state. PIRSA has an ongoing need to reinvest in building, equipment and  
information technology to produce its agreed service delivery outcomes.

Land and building infrastructure assets represent 80.0% of the agency’s capital investments.

Property, Plant and Equipment as at 30 June 2011

In 2010-11 the total value of property, plant and equipment decreased by $4.1 million from $130.8 million to 
$126.7 million. The decrease was largely due to a net reduction of $3.7 million in asset values relating to an  
accounting policy change in the asset capitalisation threshold during 2010-11 from $2 000 to $10 000.
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